
NOTICE
The City of Stoughton will hold a meeting of the Public Safety Committee on
Wednesday, June 23, 2010 at 6:00 p.m., in the Hall of Fame room, City Hall, 381 E. Main
Street, Stoughton WI 53589.

CALL TO ORDER
1. Minutes of the Public Safety Committee meeting of May 26, 2010 and Special Public
Safety meeting of June 8, 2010.

COMMUNICATIONS:
Smoking Ban to take effect on July 5, 2010.

OLD BUSINESS:
1. Application for a Class “B” Beer & Class “C” Wine License: Chris Overson, agent, dba

The Break Room & Lounge located at 556 E Main Street.
2. Application for an Outdoor Alcohol Consumption Permit: Dave Atkins agent, dba

Dave’s Water’s Edge Tavern located at 324 S Water Street.
3. Application for an Outdoor Alcohol Consumption Permit: Teresa Knop agent, dba Pack

R Place, located at 208 W Main Street.
4. Request to keep backyard chickens:

a. Amend Section 6-2 keeping of animals and fowl, bees prohibited.
b. Amend Section 14-461 license fees
c. Annual license application to keep chickens

NEW BUSINESS:
1. **Operators License Renewal Application(s): Jessica Lunde and Rhonda Clawson.
2. Appointment of new agent, David Berndt, at Pick N Save #6390, located at 1750
Highway 51 West.
3. Request for a Handicapped Parking stall to be located outside residence at 212 S.
Water Street, and to amend section 70-198. Handicapped parking.
4. Discussion and recommendations regarding Outdoor Consumption Permits.
5. Discussion and recommendations regarding the Liquor Licensing Policy and Ordinance
relative to non renewals, suspensions, and revocations of Liquor Licenses.
6. Discuss July 2010 meeting date – possible change.
7. Future agenda items: Update and Information regarding Police squad car retained to
60,000 miles vs. 45,000 miles.

ADJOURNMENT
** Meeting may close per Statutes 19.85 (1)(b) to consider the licensing of a person(s) and
then re-open for the regular course of business.

SENT TO:
Larry Weiss Ron Christianson
Tim Carter, Vice Chair Ross Scovotti, Chair

cc:
Mayor Donna Olson Gennifer Mott
Deputy Clerk Pili Hougan Dave Atkins
Department Heads (via e-mail) Sto Newspapers/ Wisc State Journal
Council Members (via e-mail) Acting Police Chief Pat Conlin



Attorney Matt Dregne Chris Overson
Teresa/Dave Knop
Lib. Clerical Asst. D Myren (e-mail
T. Fleres/D. Blaney (e-mail

NOTE: AN EXPANDED MEETING MAY CONSTITUTE A QUORUM OF THE COUNCIL.

For security reasons, the front doors of the City Hall Building (including the elevator door) will be locked after
4:30 p.m. If you need to enter City Hall after that time, please use the entrance on the East side of City Hall.
If you are physically challenged and are in need of the elevator or other assistance, please call 873-6677 prior
to 4:30 p.m.





PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES
Wednesday, May 26, 2010 – 6:00 p.m.
Hall of Fame Room, City Hall


Present: Alderpersons Ross Scovotti, Ron Christianson, Tim Carter, Larry Weiss.


Guests: Alderperson Steve Tone, Acting Police Chief Pat Conlin, City Clerk Luann Alme,
Deputy Clerk Pili Hougan, Dave Atkins, Danny Aaberg, Steve Werner, Maureen Kingsley,
Mary Calland, Dennis Schwenn, Kevin Weaver, Robert Veits and Gennifer Mott (arrived at
6:30).


Call to Order: Alderman Ross Scovotti called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.


Approval of the minutes of the Public Safety meeting held on April 28, 2010:
Motion by Weiss, seconded by Carter to approve the 4-28-2010 Public Safety minutes.
Carried unanimously.


Results of the traffic study on Prospect Street and McKinley Street: Acting Police
Chief Pat Conlin reported there have been no recent complaints in that area; and the
residents of the neighborhood will get in contact with him if traffic issues start to arise in
the future. No action taken.


Application for a Class “B” Beer & Class “C” Wine License: Chris Overson agent,
dba The Break Room & Lounge, located at 556 E Main Street: Moved by Weiss,
seconded by Carter to table this agenda item to the next Public Safety meeting on June
23, 2010. Carried unanimously.


Application for an Outdoor Alcohol Consumption Permit: Dave Atkins agent, dba
Dave’s Water’s Edge Tavern located at 324 S. Water Street: Moved by Weiss,
seconded by Carter, to table to the next Public Safety meeting. Carried unanimously.


Application for an Outdoor Alcohol Consumption Permit: Teresa Knop agent, dba
Pack R Place, located at 208 W. Main Street: Moved by Weiss, seconded by Carter to
table to the next Public Safety meeting. Carried unanimously.


Update on Request to keep chickens within the City of Stoughton: Alderperson
Steve Tone reported on the move to keep chickens in the City. City Clerk Alme is
working on amendments to sections of the ordinance and talking with the planning
department regarding zoning. Staff will bring back information to the next Public Safety
meeting.


Leadership Class Presentation: Tricia Suess: The Leadership Safe Ride
presentation has been tabled to next year. Carried unanimously.


Operator’s License Renewal Application : Moved by Weiss, seconded by
Christianson, to recommend Council grant an Operator’s license for Maureen Kingsley,
contingent upon no fine’s or fee’s due to the City. Carried unanimously.


Liquor License Renewals: Moved by Carter, seconded by Christianson, to recommend
Council approval of a “Class B” Beer & Liquor License renewal to Danny Aaberg, dba
Whatever, located at 508 E Main Street; contingent upon no fines or fees due to the City.
Carried unanimously.







Public Safety Committee Meeting Minutes
May 24, 2010
Page 2


Moved by Weiss, seconded by Carter, to recommend Council approval of a “Class B”
Beer & Liquor license to the VFW Badger Post 328, Patrick Nowlin Agent, located at 200
S Veteran’s Rd. (Dennis Schwenn appeared before the Public Safety Committee),
contingent upon no fines or fees due to the City. Motion carried 3 to 1.


* Moved by Carter, seconded by Christianson, to recommend to Council denial of a Class
“B” Beer & Reserve “Class B” Liquor license to Kevin Weaver, agent dba Rev. Jims
Roadhouse II, located at 111 Chalet Drive. Carried unanimously.


Liquor license renewals for the period of July 1, 2010 through June 30, 2011:
Moved by Christianson, seconded by Carter, to recommend approval of all the liquor
licenses listed in the notice for the period of July 1, 2010 through June 30, 2011,
contingent upon no fines or fees due to the City. An amendment was made to the motion
to remove Rev. Jims Roadhouse II, Kevin Weaver agent, located at 111 Chalet Drive
from the list. Carried unanimously.


Outdoor Consumption Permits for the period of July 1, 2010 through June 30,
2011: Moved by Christianson, seconded by Weiss, to recommend approval for renewal
of an Outdoor Alcohol Consumption Permit to Robert Veits agent, dba Cully’s Cocktail
Lounge, located at 210 Water Street, contingent upon no fines or fees due to the City.
Further discussion, Chair Scovotti reminded Rob Veits of the rules under his outdoor
permit, to eliminate the Karaoke and any loud acoustic noise. If there are any noise
complaints in the next month, the Outdoor Alcohol Consumption permit will be removed
from Cully’s Cocktail Lounge. Carried unanimously.


Moved by Carter, seconded by Weiss, to recommend approval of an Outdoor Alcohol
Consumtion Permit (based on new plans submitted since the previous year), to the
American Legion Post 59, Archie Christensen agent, located at 803 N Page St;
contingent upon no fines or fees due to the City. Carried unanimously.


Discussion and possible amendment to Section 14-40(k)(6) Permits for outdoor
consumption as Class B Premises. Mike Stacey from Planning and Zoning made a
presentation on the new zoning code and how it will affect Outdoor Consumption
Permits. There may be a possible amendment to the code; this will be presented at a
future Planning Commission meeting.


Request for “No Parking” on the corner of North Monroe Street & Jackson Street:
Therese Hann was at the meeting and spoke regarding her concerns for pedestrian
crossing at this intersection. Moved by Carter, seconded by Christiansen to recommend
amending section 70-176 Parking Prohibited at all times, and to place a “No Parking from
here to corner” sign and paint the curb yellow 10 ft. east from the crosswalk to indicate no
parking on the Jackson Street side of 224 N Monroe St. and place ordinance amendment
for a first reading. Carried unanimously.


Future agenda items:


Application for a Class “B” Beer & Class “C” Wine license for Chris Overson agent, dba
“The Break Room & Lounge” located at 556 E. Main Street.







Public Safety Committee Meeting Minutes
May 24, 2010
Page 3


Applications for Outdoor Alcohol Consumption Permits: Dave’s Waters Edge and Pack
R Place.


Request to amend Ordinance Section 6-2: Keeping of animals, fowl and bees prohibited-
bring back research on Chickens.


Review of Outdoor Consumption Permit Ordinance.


Next Year: Safe Ride presentation by the Leadership Class.


* Agenda item for recommendation to deny renewal of a Class “B” Beer & Reserve
“Class B” Liquor license for Rev. Jim’s Roadhouse II, Kevin Weaver, agent, located at
111 Chalet Drive; was revisited due to new information brought forth by City Clerk Alme
which was not available at the time the agenda item was discussed. Original motion to
recommend denial of liquor license was withdrawn by Carter, second withdrawn by
Christianson.


Motion by Carter, seconded by Christiansen to refer this item to City attorney for review
and recommendation, and to hold a special Public Safety meeting regarding
recommendation for renewal of Rev. Jim’s Roadhouse, Kevin Weaver, agent, to be
determined in the near future. Carried unanimously.


Respectfully Submitted,
Pili Hougan
Deputy City Clerk


S/common/mph/public safety/mintues/2010/minutes 05-26-10.








SPECIAL PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES
Tuesday, June 8, 2010 – 6:00 p.m.
Hall of Fame Room, City Hall


Present: Alderpersons Ross Scovotti, Ron Christianson, Tim Carter, Larry Weiss.


Guests: Mayor Donna Olson, Acting Police Chief Pat Conlin, Deputy Clerk Pili Hougan,
Kevin Weaver, Steve Werner, Matt Dregne and Elizabeth Howard.


Call to Order: Alderman Ross Scovotti called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.


Liquor license renewal application for the period of July 01, 2010 through June 30,
2011 for a Class “B” Beer & Reserve “Class B” Liquor License, Rev. Jim’s
Roadhouse II, Kevin Weaver agent, located at 111 Chalet Drive: Motion by Scovotti,
seconded by Carter to recommend Council approve the Class “B” Beer & Reserve “Class
B” Liquor License for Rev. Jim’s Roadhouse II, Kevin Weaver agent, for the period of
July 01, 2010 through June 30, 2011, contingent upon no fees or fines due to the city.
Carried unanimously.


Moved by Weiss, seconded by Christiansen, to close the meeting per State Statute
19.85(1)(d) to consider strategy for crime detection or prevention. Motion carried
unanimously on roll call.


Request for outdoor alcohol consumption permit and street closing permit for
Cheap Shots located at 321 South Division Street on June 12, 2010 from 5:00 p.m.
to 2:30 a.m. for Homicide Victim Family Benefit: Acting Police Chief Pat Conlin gave a
presentation regarding a family benefit planned for a homicide victim. Moved by Carter,
seconded by Christiansen, to recommend Council approve outdoor alcohol consumption
permit and street closing permit for a one time event only, to be held at Cheap Shots
located at 321 South Division Street, on June 12, 2010 from 5:00 p.m. to 2:30 a.m. Further
discussion, the committee recommended not using any glass or glass bottles indoors or
outdoors, and beverages to be served in plastic containers. Carried unanimously.


Moved by Christiansen, seconded by Scovotti, to open the meeting for the regular course
of business. Carried unanimously.


Future agenda items: Discuss items presented for clarification to the City Code in the
letter drafted by City Attorney Matt Dregne regarding the City’s policy on liquor License
renewals, revocation and suspension policy. Start discussions regarding outdoor alcohol
consumption permits regarding one time events, and regular permits granted to
establishments which are renewed annually.


Moved by Carter, seconded by Christiansen to adjourn the meeting at 7:04. Carried
unanimously.


Respectfully Submitted,
Pili Hougan
Deputy City Clerk


S/common/mph/special public safety/mintues/2010/minutes 06-08-10








O - - 2010


AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 14-461
OF THE MUNICIPAL CODE


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin, do ordain


as follows:


1. Section 14-461 of the Stoughton Municipal Code of the City of Stoughton is
hereby amended and shall read as follows:


14-461 License Fees.


A license shall be required for the sale of each of the following or the conduct of
business or activity at the indicated license fee. The fees established n this section may
be modified from time to time by council resolution, and a schedule is maintained by the
Clerk.


(22) Chickens…………………………………………………$15.00 per household


2. This ordinance shall take effect upon its passage and publication.


The above and foregoing ordinance was duly adopted by the Common Council of


the City of Stoughton at a regular meeting held on the day of , 2010.


VOTE: APPROVED:


Ayes: ____________________________
Donna L. Olson, Mayor


Noes:
ATTEST:


Adopted:
_____________________________


Published: Luann J. Alme, City Clerk


s/common/lja/ord&res/chickens/section 14-461 chicken fees








Original ______ Annual License Application to Keep Chickens
Renewal ______


An annual license is required for the keeping of any domesticated chickens in residential areas of the City of Stoughton.


A chicken license must be issued annually by March 31st of each year or the permit will be subject to a $25 late fee. You
can obtain a permit at City Hall, 381 E. Main St., Monday - Friday between the hours of 7:30 a.m. and 4:30 p.m. or by mail
by completing and mailing the application form below.


Annual Fee is $15 per household


Permit Application
 Include self-addressed, stamped envelope with application.


 Make check payable to: City of Stoughton.


 Must be postmarked March 31st or be subject to late fee of $25 per household


Complete the Following:


Application Date: ___________________________ Number of chickens to be kept _______________________


Applicant Name(please print): ___________________________________________________


Street Address where chickens will be housed: _____________________________________


Phone(day time): ______________________


Your signature acknowledges that you have read and accept the following standards for keeping chickens in the City of
Stoughton:


1. A maximum of four female chickens (hens) and zero male chickens (roosters) may be kept within the city limits


2. Both indoor and outdoor killing or slaughtering of chickens is prohibited within the city limits


3. Proof of registration with the Department of Agriculture must be provided prior to the license being issued


4. Coops and run construction, location site plan and zoning verification must be approved by the Planning Department prior
to issuance of license. You must consent to inspection of the premises by the Planning Department and/or Police
Department. Coops must be kept clean as to not create an odor nuisance and defecation must be properly disposed of.


5. Selling of eggs is prohibited


6. You will abide by the Noise standards specified in Section 6-5 of the City of Stoughton Code of Ordinances


7. You will abide by the Public Nuisances – Noxious Odors standards specified in Section 58-8 of the City of Stoughton Code
of Ordinances


8. The penalty for not adhering to the above standards is $50 per occurrence and possible revocation and/or denial of license
application


Applicant Signature ________________________________________________ Date _________________


APPROVED Clerk’s Office ______________________________________


APPROVED Planning Dept. ______________________________________







Date Permit Issued: __________________








mhougan

Line



mhougan

Line



mhougan

Pencil







mhougan

Pencil



mhougan

Pencil



mhougan

Pencil



mhougan

Pencil








mhougan

Pencil







mhougan

Pencil



mhougan

Pencil



mhougan

Pencil



mhougan

Pencil



mhougan

Pencil



mhougan

Pencil



mhougan

Pencil



mhougan

Pencil



mhougan

Pencil








ROUNDY'S SUPERMARKETS, INC.
PICK 'N SAVE' COPPS' RAINBOW FOODS


PO Box 473
Milwaukee, WI 53201


414-231-5000


June 14,2010


VIA GROUND COURIER


Ms, Pili Hougan
City of Stoughton
381 E. Main Street
Stoughton, WI 53589


Re: Change of Agent


Dear Ms, Hougan:


Enclosed please find a Schedule for Appointment of Agent and Auxiliary Questionnaire for the new agent
for the Pick 'n Save #6390 store located at 1750 Highway 51 in Stoughton,


Please contact me with any questions you may have at 414-231-5904 or jessica.gomez@roundys.com.


Very truly yours,


ROUNDY'S SUPERMARKETS, INe.


rM~:e~·6~
Paralegal


Enclosures


MILWAUKEE







SCHEDULE FOR APPOINTMENT OF AGENT BY CORPORATION/NONPROFIT
ORGANIZATION OR LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY


Submit to municipal clerk.


All corporations/organizations or limited liability companies applying for a license to sell fermented malt beverages and/or intoxicating
liquor must appoint an agent. The following questions must be answered by the agent. The appointment must be signed by the officer(s)
of the corporation/organization or members/managers of a limited liability company and the recommendation made by the proper
local official. o Towno Village


IZJ City


of Stoughton County of Dane----------------------To the goveming body of:


The undersigned duly authorized officer(s)/members/managers of Ultra Mart Foods, LLC
(registered name of corporation/organization or limited liability company)


a corporation/organization or limited liability company making application for an alcohol beverage license for a premises known as


Pick In Save #6390
(trade name)


located at 1750 Hwy 51 W


[


appoints 'DA-'-lil) :D. l?EttN~ .
(name of apPo~d agent) /' _i- IOC} C Il A-w R::,flD j)/b V ~ l):~'1"1'A6-~ 6eo1' ~ W(


(home address of appointed agent)


to act for the corporation/organizationllimited liability company with full authority and control of the premises and of all business relative
to alcohol beverages conducted therein. Is applicant agent presently acting in that capacity or requesting approval for any corporation/
organizationllimited liability company having or applying for a beer and/or liquor license for any other location in Wisconsin?


DYes !lI No If so, indicate the corporate name(s)lIimited liability company(ies) and municipality(ies).


Is applicant agent subject to completion of the responsible beverage server training course? 0 Yes IZJ Nocowlong immediately prior to making thiS, application has the applicant agent resided continuously in Wisconsin? ~~


i-- Place of residence last year W 15(0 I-.JS. I N--~~-=~~~~~~----------------------------------------------
~~ Ultra Mart Foods, LLC


( me of corporationlorganizationllimited liability company)~: -Vp
(signature of OfficerlMemberlManager)


And: - V
(signature of OfficerlMemberiManager)


~ ~ CCEPTANCE BY AGENT


I, __ --=LJ""".=.:A'--'-\.)::....:;"\.!.-L-_=--LJ_-,.,---,--,,,-----"'=-~--'----.......,-t)-"'· ~"----,-l_- , hereby accept this appointment as agent for the
(printltype agent's name)


corporation/organizationllimited liability company and assume full responsibility for the conduct of all business relative to alcohol
beverages condu ed the pr ises for the corporation/organizationllimited liability company.


Agent's age __ -'1/'---'9'-, _


jZ-IS~/760Date of birth
(home address of agent)


(date)


(?P",4(;E 6n..(JIJG W I709 (sig re of agent)


C ILA-~ FoILD Q,v \Ie


APPROVAL OF AGENT BY MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY
(Clerk cannot sign on behalf of Municipal Official)


I hereby certify that I have checked municipal and state criminal records. To the best of my knowledge, with the available information,
the character, record and reputation are satisfactory and I have no objection to the agent appointed. .


Approved on --~-:7"";--'---- by -----------,--,-,--;----;-..,..,--:-;-:-c-;-~.,-;;----------
(da/e) (signa/ure of proper local official)


Title -;c:--:--::-;:-:.,-,-~-:-::-~;-:--:;-~~-,,-;;-
(town chair, village president, police chief)


Wisconsin Department of RevenueAT-104 (R. 4-09)



mhougan

Pencil



mhougan

Pencil



mhougan

Pencil



mhougan

Pencil



mhougan

Pencil







AUXILIARY QUESTIONNAIRE
ALCOHOL BEVERAGE LICENSE APPLICATION


REcallED JUN 0 7 2010


S bmit to municipal clerk.


Social Security Number


"39S-58 ~9'51-6
Individual's Full Name (please print)


Age Date of Birth


Jf9 /1-."IS~/96a


City ,


C~1'11\6 ~GIl.~lI <?
State Zip Code


WI 6Ss;t 1
Place of Birth


MIl.WAo I!kf:


. The above named individual provides the following information as a person who is (check one):


o Applying for an alcohol beverage license as an individual.


o A member of a partnership which is making application for an alcohol beverage license.


[l] Agent of Ultra Mart Foods, LLC
(OfficerIDirec/orIMemberlManagerIAgent) -------;(;;:;N.:::m:::.c:07fc''-o::,rp::o-::ra''''/io::n', L'"im::;it"'ed;;-U"·.:>b""i/i'iC/y"CCCom::Cp::.:::ny:-:o:-:r-;:;No:::n:::Cpro;:Cfl"',/"O=rg=.n"-iz=-a/"-io=-n).-----


which is making application for an alcohol beverage license,


The above named individual provides the following information to the licensing authority:


1. How long have you continuously resided in Wisconsin prior to this date? -,---,Od=-.;S..L-:-:-y+-'EA""'-,l;It..S:.==: _
2. Have you ever been convicted of any offenses (other than traffic unrelated to alcohol beverages) for


violation of any federal laws, any Wisconsin laws, any laws of any other states or ordinances of any county
or municipality? ..... , .... , . , . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 0 Yes ~
If yes, give law or ordinance violated, trial court, trial date and penalty imposed, and/or date, description and
status of charges pending. (If more room is needed, continue on reverse side of this form.)


3. Are charges for any offenses presently pending against you (other than traffic unrelated to alcohol beverages)
for violation of any federal laws, any Wisconsin laws, any laws of other states or ordinances of any county or
municipality? , , D Yes ~
If yes, describe status of charges pending.


4. Do you hold, are you making application for or are you an officer, director or agent of a corporation/nonprofit
organization or member/manager/agent of a limited liability company holding or applying for any other alcohol
beverage license or permit? , , . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. 0 Yes IZlNo
If yes, identify.


(Name, Location and Type of Ucense/Permit)


5. Do you hold and/or are you an officer, director, stockholder, agent or employe of any person or corporation or
member/manager/agent of a limited liability company holding or applying for a wholesale beer license,
brewery/winery permit or wholesale liquor manufacturer or rectifier permit in the State of Wisconsin? " 0 Yes [Z)No
If yes, identify.


Y-


(Name of WholesaJe Licensee or Permittee)


6. Named individual must list in chronological order last two employers.


E~PIOy;Szmjr 81J d.- . ~m7o's Addr.s-c Artl u. MAc tV ~ fl


(Address By City and County)


EmployedFrom
;l~/- /0
Employed From


7 - i ,-OC'-·
To


;1-/--I(j


The undersigned, being first duly sworn on oath, deposes and says that he/she is the person named in the foregoing application; that
the applicant has read and made a complete answer to each question, and that the answers in each instance are true and correct. The
undersigned further understands that any license issued contrary to Chapter 125 of the Wisconsin Statutes shall be void, and under
penalty of state law, the applicant may be prosecuted for submitting false statements and affidavits in connection with this application.


Subscribed and swom to before me


b this ~ day ofJlJtvE , 20 ill
:g'_ <m[)~~


:·.'-~~G_~~~ml:sionexpires I ~ /1 I ~D 13
:...... ...•


;--~~&--=-----,,(S"'ig.,=n.'-;-/u-.-O-;-fN,..,.:-::-m,-"ed71;c4n~bic:~""u.C;;:------


{J
.•.\T•.l03 (R. 3-09)


Printed on
Recycled Paper


Wisconsin Department of Revenue


, .



mhougan

Pencil



mhougan

Pencil



mhougan

Pencil



mhougan

Pencil



mhougan

Pencil



mhougan

Pencil



mhougan

Pencil



mhougan

Pencil



mhougan

Pencil








Maria Hougan


From: Pat Conlin


Sent: Thursday, June 10, 2010 6:40 PM


To: Maria Hougan


Subject: RE: Handicapped Parking Spot


Page 1 of 2


6/11/2010


Hi Pili!


Just an update that the parking permit would NOT apply in this case...


Sec. 70-12. - Parking permits.


(a)


Persons living on a street not in the business district which is posted for two-hour parking may apply for
a parking permit to exempt them from the two-hour parking restriction only. The person receiving the
permit is not exempt from other street parking laws, such as 48-hour parking, street
storage/abandonment or the snow parking regulations.


(b)


Only two permits per household will be granted. Permits will be issued by the police department for a
fee set by the council and are valid from the date of issue. Expiration of permit will occur when the
person moves from the posted area. The permit shall be affixed to the left side of the rear bumper.


From: Maria Hougan
Sent: Thursday, June 10, 2010 9:51 AM
To: 'Ross@ScovottiCentral.com'
Cc: Pat Conlin
Subject: FW: Handicapped Parking Spot


Please see a request for the public safety meeting regarding handicapped parking in the email below. Please
confirm if you would like it on the June 23 Public Safety agenda. Thanks and enjoy the day!


From: William Hansen [mailto:William.Hansen@capitolfordsales.com]
Sent: Thursday, June 10, 2010 9:39 AM
To: Maria Hougan
Subject: Handicapped Parking Spot


This is to request that a handicapped parking spot be located outside of my residence at 212 S Water St. I have
been diagnosed with Multiple Sclerosis, and when I am having an attack, walking is quite difficult. Even the walk
across the street from the municipal lot is a nightmare!
Ideally, I would have liked just to be able to park outside where I live and just have the police know not to ticket
me, since that would be a much less intrusive and cheaper alternative. But, since the 8 or 9 times a year I can’t







walk far is too much of a problem for the city to allow me to park there using my Handicapped Sticker, I need a
special parking arrangement.
If you have any questions, please contact me at 608 334-6216 or by email at either
William.hansen@capitolfordsales.com or bhbigred@yahoo.com.


Thank you very much,


William Hansen
212A S Water St
Stoughton, Wi
53589


Page 2 of 2


6/11/2010
































































Hello Ross,


I have two trials that night, one at 6pm and one at 6:15. I will come to the meeting once the trials
are over.


I have attached a proposed amendment that I believe will address the zoning issues related to
outdoor seating and patio areas for taverns and restaurants. This amendment will be reviewed at
the June 7th Planning Commission meeting.


I see outdoor alcohol consumption as a separate issue.


Some examples scenarios (assuming the attached zoning ordinance amendment is adopted):


 Someone wants to open the old Broux House (which is currently vacant) as a new
restaurant with outdoor dining and alcohol consumption. By zoning there is already a
grandfathered outdoor seating area which can be continued. The outdoor alcohol
consumption would need to be addressed through Public Safety/Council.


 A tavern owner wants to add an outdoor area specifically for people to smoke. A
conditional use permit would be required through Planning Commission/Council.


 A tavern owner wants to hold a one day special event with outdoor alcohol consumption
and a band. The temporary outdoor alcohol consumption would be addressed through
Public Safety/Council. A temporary use permit is required through the Department of
Planning & Development.


The key will be to provide applicants with all the information they will need to try to accomplish
whatever scenario they seek. I think we are heading in the right direction with the updated
outdoor consumption application.


Let me know if you have any questions,


Michael P. Stacey


City of Stoughton


Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner


381 E. Main Street


Stoughton, WI 53589







O – – 10


AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTIONS 78-206(4)(h) & 78-105(4)(b)2b
OF THE STOUGHTON MUNICIPAL CODE


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin, do ordain as


follows:


1. Sections 78-206(4)(h) & 78-105(4)(b)2b of the Stoughton Municipal Zoning Code are


hereby amended and shall read as follows:


Sec. 78-206(4)(h) Indoor Commercial Entertainment


(a) Indoor Commercial Entertainment


Description: Indoor commercial entertainment land uses include all land uses which
provide entertainment services entirely primarily within an enclosed building. Outdoor
seating or patio areas associated with a proposed indoor commercial entertainment
land use shall be allowed subject to city approval of a site plan showing any such
proposed outdoor seating or patio area. Such activities often have operating hours
which extend significantly later than most other commercial land uses. Examples of
such land uses include restaurants, taverns, theaters, health or fitness centers, all
forms of training studios (dance, art, martial arts, etc.), bowling alleys, arcades, roller
rinks, and pool halls.


1. Regulations:


a. If located on the same side of the building as abutting residentially zoned
property, no customer entrance of any kind shall be permitted within 150 100
feet, or as far as possible, of a residentially zoned property.


b. Facility shall provide bufferyard with minimum opacity of .60 along all borders of
the property abutting residentially zoned property (see Section 78-610).


2. Parking Requirements:


One space per every three patron seats or lockers (whichever is greater); or one
space per three persons at the maximum capacity of the establishment; (whichever
is greater).


Sec. 78-105(4)(b)2b Planned Business (PB) District, Principal Land Uses Permitted as
Conditional Use:


Outdoor Commercial Entertainment (per Section 78-206(4)(i)







2. This ordinance shall take effect after passage and publications as required by law.


Adopted on roll call at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Stoughton held
on the day of , 2010.


VOTE: APPROVED:


Ayes: ________________________
Donna L. Olson, Mayor


Noes:


Adopted: ATTEST:


Published: __________________________
Luann J. Alme, City Clerk


s:\common\mps\ordinancechanges\ch78\indoorcommercialentertainment
































Stoughton, Wisconsin, Code of Ordinances >> - MUNICIPAL CODE >> Chapter 14 - BUSINESSES >> ARTICLE II. -
ALCOHOL BEVERAGES >>


ARTICLE II. - ALCOHOL BEVERAGES


Sec. 14-31. - Revocation, suspension or nonrenewal of l icense.


Sec. 14-32. - Alcohol beverage licenses.


Sec. 14-33. - State statutes adopted.


Sec. 14-34. - Penalty.


Sec. 14-35. - License fees.


Sec. 14-36. - Application.


Sec. 14-37. - Transfer of licenses.


Sec. 14-38. - Issuance of l icense.


Sec. 14-39. - General licensing requirements.


Sec. 14-40. - Operation by licensee under Class A or B license; additional city regulations.


Sec. 14-41. - License cancellation.


Sec. 14-42. - Point values for alcohol beverage license, outdoor consumption permit, and cabaret license violations, revocations and suspensions.


Secs. 14-43, 14-44. - Reserved.


Sec. 14-45. - Nude dancing in licensed establishments prohibited.


Secs. 14-46—14-70. - Reserved.


Sec. 14-31. - Revocation, suspension or nonrenewal of license.


The following provisions shall apply to the revocation, suspension or nonrenewal of any license issued pursuant to this


chapter notwithstanding any other provisions of this chapter, except those providing for revocation or suspension of any license


by the court:


Complaint. Any resident of the city may file a sworn written complaint with the city clerk alleging one or more of the
following about any person or other entity licensed pursuant to this chapter:


The person has violated any provision of this chapter or keeps or maintains a disorderly or riotous, indecent


or improper house.


The person has sold or given away any intoxicant to any underage person, or to persons intoxicated or


bordering on intoxication.


The person has failed to maintain the premises according to the standards prescribed for sanitation or in
whose premises persons are permitted to loiter for purposes of prostitution.


The person has not observed and obeyed any lawful order of the city council or police officers of the city.


The person does not possess the qualifications required under this chapter to hold the license.


The person has been convicted of manufacturing or delivering a controlled substance under Wis. Stats. §


961.41(1); of possessing, with intent to manufacture or deliver a controlled substance under Wis. Stats. §
961.41(1m), or of possessing, with intent to manufacture or deliver, or of manufacturing or delivering a


controlled substance under a substantially similar federal law or a substantially similar law of another state.


(1)


a.


b.


c.


d.


e.


f.







The person knowingly allows another person, who is on the premises for which the license under this
chapter is issued, to possess, with the intent to manufacture or deliver, or to manufacture or deliver a


controlled substance.


Summons. Upon the filing of the complaint, the city council shall issue a summons, signed by the clerk and
directed to any peace officer in the municipality. The summons shall command the licensee complained of to


appear before the public safety committee on a day and time and at a place named in the summons, not less than


three days and not more than ten days from the date of issuance, and show cause why the license should not be


revoked or suspended. The summons and a copy of the complaint shall be served on the licensee at least three
days before the time at which the licensee is commanded to appear. Service shall be in the manner provided under


Wis. Stats. ch. 801, for service in civil actions in circuit court.


Procedure on hearing.


No appearance. If the licensee does not appear as required by the summons, the allegations of the


complaint shall be taken as true and, if the committee finds the allegations sufficient, the license shall be


revoked. The clerk shall give notice of the revocation to the person whose license is revoked.


Public safety committee to serve as hearing agency.


The public safety committee shall serve as the hearing agency for the city council. The chair of the


committee or the chair's designee shall conduct the hearing, administer oaths to all witnesses and


may issue subpoenas. As far as practicable, the rules of evidence provided in Wis. Stats. § 227.45
shall be followed. The complainant shall have the burden of proving the charges by a preponderance


of the evidence.


If the licensee appears as required by summons and denies the complaint, both the complainant and
the licensee may produce witnesses, cross examine witnesses and be represented by counsel. The


licensee shall be provided a written transcript of the hearing at his expense. All proceedings and


testimony shall be recorded on tape and transcribed unless waived by both the complainant and


licensee. If either party requires a stenographic recording and transcription, city staff shall make the
necessary arrangements, but the expense shall be borne by the requesting party. The secretary to the


public safety committee shall mark and receive all exhibits admitted into the record.


Within 20 days of the completion of the hearing, the public safety committee shall submit a report to
the city council, including findings of fact, conclusions of law and a recommendation as to what action,


if any, the city council should take with respect to the license. The public safety committee shall


provide the complainant and the licensee with a copy of the report. Either the complainant or the


licensee may file an objection to the report and shall have the opportunity to present arguments
supporting the objection to the city council. The city council shall determine whether the arguments


shall be presented orally or in writing or both.


At the second regular meeting of the city council, after the filing of the public safety committee's
recommendation, the city council shall act on the recommendation. If the recommendation is based


upon a stipulation of the parties, the city council may accept or reject the recommendations by a


simple majority vote. If the city council rejects the recommendation, the matter shall be referred back to


the public safety committee for a full factfinding hearing. If the recommendation is based upon a full
factfinding hearing, the recommendation shall become the decision of the city council unless reversed


or modified by a simple majority vote. No further evidence shall be allowed before the city council. Only


those members of the city council who have certified to the clerk in writing that they have read the


transcript, unless waived by both the complainant and the licensee, exhibits and reports of the public
safety committee, shall be permitted to vote on the matter. If the city council after considering the public


g.


(2)


(3)


a.


b.


1.


2.


3.


4.







safety committee, shall be permitted to vote on the matter. If the city council after considering the public


safety committee's report and any arguments presented by the complainant or the licensee finds the


complaint to be true or if there is no objection to the report recommending suspension or revocation of


license, the license shall be suspended for not less than one day nor more than 90 days or revoked.
Any suspension or revocation shall be served beginning at 12:00 a.m. on the 7th day following council


action. The decision of the city council shall be a final determination for purposes of judicial review. If


the complaint is found to be true, the licensee shall pay to the city the actual costs of the proceedings.


Notice. The city clerk shall give notice of each suspension or revocation to the person whose license is


suspended or revoked.


Dismissal. If the city council finds the complaint untrue, the proceeding shall be dismissed without cost to
the accused. If the city council finds the complaint to be malicious and without probable cause, the costs


shall be paid by the complainant. The city council or committee may require the complainant to provide


security for such costs before issuing the summons under subsection (2) of this section.


Effect of revocation. When a license is revoked under this section, the revocation shall be recorded by the city clerk


and no other license issued under this article shall be granted to such licensee or for such premises for a period of


12 months from the date of the revocation.


Judicial review. The action of the city council in granting or failing to grant, suspending or revoking any license or


the failure of the city council to revoke or suspend any license for good cause may be reviewed by the circuit court


for the county in which the application for the license was issued, upon application by any applicant, licensee or


resident of the city. The procedure on review shall be the same as in civil actions instituted in the circuit court. The
person desiring review shall file pleadings, which shall be served on the city council in the manner provided in Wis.


Stats. ch. 801, for service in civil actions and a copy of the pleadings shall be served on the applicant or licensee.


The city council, applicant or licensee shall have 20 days to file an answer to the complaint. Following filing of the


answer, that matter shall be deemed at issue and hearing may be had within five days, upon due notice served
upon the opposing party. The hearing shall be before the court without a jury. Subpoenas for witnesses may be


issued and their attendance compelled. The decision of the court shall be filed within ten days after the hearing and


a copy of the decision shall be transmitted to each of the parties. The decision shall be binding unless it is


appealed to the court of appeals.


Nonrenewal of license. The city attorney may, after investigation, commence an action before the public safety


committee to hear evidence and make a recommendation to the city council that a license issued pursuant to this


chapter not be renewed. The chair shall, in writing, notify the licensee of the consideration of nonrenewal. Such
notification shall be in the form of and shall serve as the summons and complaint and shall include a statement of


the reasons for the consideration of the nonrenewal of the license in the same specificity required for a summons


and complaint for revocation or suspension. If the license is recommended for nonrenewal, costs may be


assessed against the licensee and any renewal application fee shall be forfeited. In all other respects, the
provisions of subsections (1) and (2) of this section shall apply. The commencement of this action shall stay action


by the city council on the licensee's application until the committee makes its recommendation.


Other provisions. Any license issued pursuant to this chapter shall be subject to such further regulations and
restrictions as may be imposed by the city council by amendment to this chapter or by the enactment of new


ordinances. If any licensee shall fail or neglect to meet the requirements imposed by such new restrictions and


regulations, his license may be revoked in accordance with this chapter. In case of revocation of any license or any


violation of any provision of this chapter in accordance with this chapter or by the court or for any reasonable cause
except the imposition of new restrictions, no refund shall be made of any part of the license fee. If a license issued


under this chapter is not used within 15 days after its issuance or its usage is discontinued for a period of 15 days


or more, such situation shall be grounds for cancellation of the license in accordance with the provisions of this


chapter.


c.


d.


(4)


(5)


(6)


(7)







(Code 1986, § 12.03(11); Ord. No. 0-40-07, § 1, 11-27-2007; Ord. No. 0-14-08, § 1, 5-27-2008)


Sec. 14-32. - Alcohol beverage licenses.


No person shall sell, keep for sale, give away, deal in, traffic in or permit to be sold, kept for sale, given away, dealt in or


trafficked in to consumers within the city any alcohol beverages, except in strict accordance with this chapter.


(Code 1986, § 12.03(1))


Sec. 14-33. - State statutes adopted.


The provisions of the Wisconsin Statutes set forth in this section are adopted and made a part of this section by reference,


exclusive of any provisions thereof relating to the penalty to be imposed or the punishment for violation of such statutes. A


violation of any such provision shall constitute a violation of this section. This adoption by reference shall include all
amendments of and to the listed provisions. Any act required to be performed or prohibited by any statute incorporated in this


section by reference is required or prohibited by this section.


Wisconsin


Statutes


Section


Description


125.02 Definitions.


125.04 General licensing requirements.


125.05 Local option; remonstrances.


125.06 License and permit restrictions.


125.07 Restrictions on sales to underage.


Persons and intoxicated persons;


presence of underage persons in;


places of sale and possession by underage persons;


penalties.


125.085 Proof of age.


125.09 General restrictions.


125.12 Revocations, suspensions, refusals to issue or review.


125.13 Report of suspension, revocation or imposition of penalty.


125.14 Enforcement provisions.


125.145 Prosecutions by attorney general.


125.16 Actions to recover price denied.


125.17 Issuance of operators' licenses.


125.18 Issuance of managers' licenses.


125.25 Class A Licenses—Fermented malt beverages.







(Code 1986, § 12.03(2))


Sec. 14-34. - Penalty.


Any licensee who personally or through his managers, operators, agents or employees violates any of the provisions of


this article shall be subject to a penalty as provided in section 1-3. In addition, the licensee's license shall be subject to
revocation, suspension or nonrenewal pursuant to Wis. Stats. § 125.12, or, if the violation involves one or more underage


persons, the penalties shall be as set forth in Wis. Stats. § 125.07.


(Code 1986, § 12.03(12))


Sec. 14-35. - License fees.


The fees for licenses issued in this article shall be in accordance with the schedule listed in section 14-461 and shall be


paid in cash or by certified check to the city clerk. Fees must be paid at least 15 days prior to the date the license is to be issued.


(Code 1986, § 12.03(3))


Sec. 14-36. - Application.


The application for such licenses shall be in writing on forms furnished by the state department of revenue and shall


contain the following information verified under oath by the applicant:


Address of the building for which the license is desired and description including a diagram of the overall


dimensions, seating arrangements, capacity and bar size of the premises therein where fermented malt beverages


or intoxicating liquors are to be sold.


A statement that the applicant or registered agent has resided continuously in the state for not less than 90 days


prior to the date of such application.


A statement as to whether the applicant has ever been convicted of a felony or of a violation of any federal or state


125.25 Class A Licenses—Fermented malt beverages.


125.26 Class B Licenses—Fermented malt beverages.


125.28 Wholesalers' licenses.


125.31


(2)


Multiple licenses and permits.


125.315


(1)


Evading provisions of law by giving away fermented malt beverages.


125.32 General restrictions and requirements.


125.51 Retail licenses and permits—Intoxicating liquor.


125.67 Evading provisions of law by giving away intoxicating liquors; penalties.


125.68 General restrictions and requirements.


(a)


(1)


(2)


(3)







A statement as to whether the applicant has ever been convicted of a felony or of a violation of any federal or state
act or ordinance regulating or prohibiting the sale of intoxicating or nonintoxicating beverage and, if so, the number


and dates of such convictions and the penalty imposed.


A statement as to whether the applicant holds or has applied for any other Class A or B licenses.


A statement as to whether any business other than the sale of fermented malt beverages, intoxicating liquor and


soft drinks is to be conducted on the premises sought to be licensed and, if so, a description of the nature of such


business. Such information shall not be required in an application for an operator's license.


A statement that the applicant is not acting as agent for or in the employ of another.


If the application is for a Class B license, a statement as to whether any brewer, bottler, wholesaler or corporation,
a majority of whose stock is owned by any brewer, bottler or wholesaler, has or intends to supply, furnish, lease,


give, pay for or take any chattel mortgage of any furniture, fixture, fittings or equipment to be used in or about the


premises covered by the application.


If the application is made for a Class A license, a statement as to whether any brewer, bottler or wholesaler has


advanced, paid or furnished the money for a license fee or intends to do so.


If the application is for a Class B license, a statement as to whether any brewer, bottler or wholesaler is financially
interested in, directly or indirectly, the license for which application is made.


The name, residence, age of the applicant, if an individual, or the names of the principal officers, their residence,


ages, if the applicant is an association or corporation, together with the state of incorporation. It shall also contain
the name of one or more persons whom such corporation or association shall designate as manager or person in


charge, with the address of such person.


A statement that the applicant consents to the entry of authorized representatives of the city at all reasonable hours
for the purpose of inspection and search and consents to the removal from the premises of all things and articles


in evidence in any prosecution that may be signed and sworn to by the applicant, if an individual, and, if a


corporation, then by the president and secretary thereof, before a notary public or other officer authorized to


administer oaths.


The application shall also contain any other reasonable and pertinent information as the city council may, from


time to time, require. The application shall be referred by the clerk to the public safety committee which shall then


make any investigation it deems necessary or desirable. The application shall also be referred by the clerk to the
chief of police who shall immediately conduct a background check and inspect the premises sought to be licensed


and report in writing to the public safety committee as required. These reports shall deal with any and all incidents


relating in any manner to the premises sought to be licensed, whether or not the incident led to any official action


against the premises or its license.


Before issuance of any operator's, manager's, Class A or Class B retailer's license, including owners of such


establishments, every applicant shall be certified as having successfully completed a responsible beverage server


training course at any location that is offered by a vocational, technical and adult education district and that conforms to
curriculum guidelines specified by the board of vocational, technical and adult education unless the applicant fulfills one


of the requirements in subsections (b)(1)—(3) of this section. Those who complete such programs shall have an


appropriate endorsement recorded and placed on their licenses and shall be eligible to operate, conduct or be employed


in establishments operating under a Class A or B license.


The person is renewing an operator's license.


(3)


(4)


(5)


(6)


(7)


(8)


(9)


(10)


(11)


(12)


(b)


(1)







Within the past two years, the person held a Class A or Class B license or permit or a manager's or operator's


license.


Within the past two years, the person has completed such a training course.


The city clerk or designee may issue a provisional operator's license to a person who is enrolled in a training course
under subsection (b) of this section and shall revoke that license if the applicant fails to successfully complete the course


in which enrolled.


Where application is made for a Class A or B license on behalf of a sole proprietorship, the sole proprietor shall
successfully complete the training course under subsection (b) of this section. Where the application is made on behalf of


a partnership, all partners shall successfully complete the training course. Where the application is made on behalf of a


corporation, the registered agent shall successfully complete the training course.


As a part of the operator's license review process, the chief of police will conduct a records check of the applicant's adult


criminal arrests through the Wisconsin Crime Identification Bureau, the police department records of the applicant. This


record will be attached to the application for review by the city clerk and, if necessary, the public safety committee.


The number of Class A fermented malt beverage only permits is limited. Class A fermented malt beverage only retailer's


licenses will be limited to one per 1,000 population for the city with partial numbers being rounded up to the next highest


whole number. The population numbers for the city will be based on the department of administration estimates for the


year in question. This number excludes Class A fermented malt beverage permits issued as a part of a Class A liquor
and fermented malt beverage combination.


(Code 1986, § 12.03(4))


Sec. 14-37. - Transfer of licenses.


No license issued pursuant to this article may be transferred from place to place or from person to person except


pursuant to the rules set forth in Wis. Stats. § 125.04(12). Any application for transfer pursuant to this statute shall be


accompanied by payment of a fee as stated in section 14-461.


(Code 1986, § 12.03(5))


Sec. 14-38. - Issuance of license.


The public safety committee shall give any person the opportunity to be heard for or against the issuance of any license.
Upon the receipt of a timely application received by the city clerk, approval of the application by the city council and after


payment of license fee, the city clerk shall issue the applicant a license. Each license shall be numbered in the order in


which issued and shall specifically state the premises for which issued, the date of issuance, fee paid and the name of


the licensee. All licenses shall remain in force until June 30 following the issuance thereof, unless revoked or suspended
in the manner provided by statute or this chapter. Renewal licenses will be issued one day later than July 1 for each day


after April 15 (due date established by statute) that the application is received and/or one day later than July 1 for each day


later than June 15 that the fee is received (due date established by statute).


Where the applicant's premises are not in compliance with relevant ordinances and/or state codes at the time of


application, the application may be accepted with the provisal that the license shall be granted and issued only upon the


applicant's compliance with applicable ordinances and codes within 90 days of acceptance. If the applicant's premises


(2)


(3)


(c)


(d)


(e)


(f)


(a)


(b)







applicant's compliance with applicable ordinances and codes within 90 days of acceptance. If the applicant's premises


are not in compliance within the 90-day period, the acceptance shall be withdrawn.


(Code 1986, § 12.03(6))


Sec. 14-39. - General licensing requirements.


In addition to the requirements set forth in section 14-33, all license applicants and licensees shall strictly comply with the


following provisions:


Conformity to statutes and ordinances. No license shall be issued or renewed unless the premises conform to the


sanitary, safety and health requirements of the state building code, plumbing code and the rules and regulations of
the state department of health applicable to restaurants, as well as all ordinances and regulations adopted by the


city.


City claims. No license shall be issued or renewed for operation on any premises upon which taxes or
assessments or other financial claims of the city are delinquent and unpaid.


(Code 1986, § 12.03(7))


Sec. 14-40. - Operation by licensee under Class A or B license; additional city regulations.


View of interior unobstructed.


Blinds, screens and partitions. No holder of a retail Class B fermented malt beverage license under this article


shall permit the interior of the premises to be obstructed, provided that partitions, etc., not exceeding 48 inches in
height, may be permitted within the interior. This subsection shall not apply to a licensed premises where the


principal business conducted is that of a restaurant or hotel.


Windows and doors. Windows and doors of any licensed premises shall not be obstructed by screens, blinds,
paints or other articles, provided articles not higher than 48 inches from the sidewalk level shall be permitted. This


subsection does not apply to a licensed premises where the principal business conducted is that of a restaurant or


hotel.


Alcohol beverages to be sold and consumed only in authorized parts of premises.


No alcohol beverage may be sold, dispensed or consumed under a Class B license in more than one room upon


the same licensed premises. This subsection shall not prohibit the consumption of such beverages in bottles or


other original containers in rooms occupied by guests in hotels, nor shall it prohibit the serving of such beverages
in additional rooms in the same building on the same premises when these rooms are open to the public for the


service of meals.


No alcohol beverage may be sold, dispensed or consumed under a Class B license in any portion of the building
or premises not authorized in the license, outside the building or premises not authorized in the license, outside


the building on the premises or within any temporary shelter or tent on the premises.


Posting. Every license issued under this chapter shall be posted in a conspicuous place, while in force, in the room or
place where alcohol beverages are kept for sale. No person shall post such licenses or permit such licenses to be


posted upon premises other than those mentioned on the application. No person shall knowingly deface or destroy such


license or remove such license without the permission of the licensee. If a license is lost or destroyed through no fault of


(1)


(2)


(a)


(1)


(2)


(b)


(1)


(2)


(c)







license or remove such license without the permission of the licensee. If a license is lost or destroyed through no fault of


the holder, a duplicate thereof under the original application shall be issued by the city clerk if the clerk is satisfied as to
the facts upon payment of a $5.00 fee.


Credit restrictions. No licensee shall sell or offer to sell any alcohol beverage to any person on credit, except credit


extended by a hotel to a resident guest or a club to a bona fide member, and by grocers and druggists who maintain a
credit system in connection with other purchases as well. No licensee shall sell alcohol beverages to any person on a


passbook or store order or receive from any person any goods, wares, merchandise or other articles in exchange for


alcohol beverages.


Gambling prohib ited. Except as provided by law, no person shall permit gambling or devices used for gambling upon any


premises licensed under this chapter.


Licensee, manager or other operator on premises. There shall be upon premises operated under a retail Class A or B
license at all times the licensee or some person who shall be responsible for acts of all persons serving in any manner


alcohol beverages to customers. No person other than the licensee shall serve alcohol beverages in any place operating


under a retail Class A or Class B license unless he possesses an operator's or manager's license or unless he is under


the immediate supervision of the licensee or a person holding an operator's or manager's license who shall be upon the
premises at the time of service.


Consent to inspection of premises. The holder of any license issued under this article shall be deemed to have given


consent to entry and inspection at any time by any police officer or alderperson without warrant. Refusal by the licensee or
holder of a manager's or operator's license to permit such inspection shall be deemed a violation of this article.


Presence on premises after hours under retail Class B license.


The licensee, employees, salesperson or service personnel shall be permitted to be present, but not to consume
alcohol beverages, on licensed premises during hours when the premises are not open for business if those


persons are performing job-related activities.


Commercial janitorial service personnel shall be allowed to enter the licensed premises for the purpose of
cleaning during hours the establishment is not permitted to be open for business. The premises shall be well-


lighted during cleanup.


Open containers restrictions. No licensee, manager or operator shall permit any patron to leave the licensed premises
with an open container containing any alcohol beverage.


Health rules. Each premises shall be maintained and conducted in a sanitary manner and shall be a safe and proper


place for the purpose for which used. The building inspector is authorized and empowered to make reasonable and
general rules for the sanitation of all places of business possessing licenses under this chapter. Such rules and


regulations may be classified and made applicable to the class of business conducted. All these rules and regulations


shall have the same force as this chapter and an infraction thereof may be punished as a violation of this chapter.


Miscellaneous rules.


Consent to inspection. Every applicant procuring a license thereby consents to the entry of a city officer or other duly


authorized representative of the city at all reasonable hours for the purpose of inspection and search, consents to


the removal from the premises of all things and articles found in violation of ordinances or law, and consents to the
introduction of such things and articles in evidence in any prosecution that may be brought for such offenses.


Employment of underage persons. No licensee shall employ an underage person in violation of Wis. Stats. §


125.07.


(d)


(e)


(f)


(g)


(h)


(1)


(2)


(i)


(j)


(k)


(1)


(2)







125.07.


Clubs. No club shall sell intoxicating liquors except to members and guests invited by members.


Orderly conduct required. Each licensed premises shall at all times be conducted in an orderly manner and no
disorderly, riotous or indecent conduct shall be allowed at any time on any licensed premises.


Alcohol beverages' content. No beverages of an alcohol content prohibited by law shall be kept in or about


licensed premises.


Permits for outdoor consumption at Class B premises.


Required for outdoor consumption. No licensee shall permit the consumption of alcohol beverages on any


part of the licensed premises not enclosed within the building, except under permit granted by the city
council. Such permits are issued by the council as provided in this article after review by the licensing


committee. The permits are a privilege in which no rights vest and, therefore, may be revoked by the council


at its pleasure at any time or shall otherwise expire on June 30 of each year. No person shall consume or


have in his possession alcohol beverages on any unenclosed part of a licensed premises which is not
described in a valid permit. The VFW shall be allowed to permit the consumption of alcohol beverages


outside their building in the picnic area as an exception to the requirements of this section.


Limitations on issuance of outdoor permits. No permit shall be issued if any part of the outdoor area is within
50 feet of a structure used for residential purposes, except residential uses located in the same structure as


the licensed premises. No permit shall be issued for an outdoor area if the area is greater than 50 percent of


the gross floor area of the adjoining licensed premises. Each application for an outdoor permit shall


accurately describe the area intended for use and shall indicate the nature of fencing or other measures
intended to provide control over the operation. Amplified sound or music shall not be permitted within the


outdoor area of the licensed premises. Outdoor areas permitted pursuant to this section shall be not be


open later than 11:00 p.m. on Fridays and Saturdays, and later than 10:00 p.m. on all other nights. The


council may impose additional restrictions on a case-by-case basis which shall be incorporated into any
outdoor consumption permit including, but not limited to, conditions relating to fencing, screening and noise


abatement.


Closing hours. Establishments holding a retail Class B intoxicating liquor license shall be closed between 2:00 a.m. and
6:00 a.m. on weekdays and between 2:30 a.m. and 6:00 a.m. on Saturdays and Sundays. On January 1, premises


operating under a Class B license are not required to close. No alcohol beverages shall be served or consumed during


hours when the premises is closed.


Prohib ition of carryout sales. No person shall sell or permit to be sold on premises for which a retail fermented malt


beverage license or retail intoxicating liquor license has been issued any intoxicating liquor or fermented malt beverage in


an original unopened package, container or bottle or for consumption away from the premises during the hours set forth


as follows:


If a retail Class A fermented malt beverage or intoxicating liquor license, between the hours of 9:00 p.m. and 8:00


a.m.


(Code 1986, § 12.03(8); Ord. No. 0-20-04, § 1, 8-10-2004; Ord. No. 0-06-07, § 1, 1-23-2007)


Sec. 14-41. - License cancellation.


If a license issued under this article is not used within 60 days after it is granted, or its usage is discontinued for a period


(3)


(4)


(5)


(6)


a.


b.


(l)


(m)


(1)







If a license issued under this article is not used within 60 days after it is granted, or its usage is discontinued for a period


of 60 days or more, such nonuse shall be grounds for cancellation of the license in accordance with the provisions of this article.
No refund shall be made of any part of the license fee if any license is canceled.


(Code 1986, § 12.03(9); Ord. No. 0-27-07, § 1, 8-28-2007; Ord. No. 0-24-08, § 1, 10-28-2008)


Sec. 14-42. - Point values for alcohol beverage license, outdoor consumption permit, and cabaret
license violations, revocations and suspensions.


Purpose and definition.


The purpose of this section is to administratively interpret those provisions of this section relating to establishing


an alcohol beverage license, outdoor consumption permit, and cabaret license demerit point system to assist in


determining which license or permit holders should be subject to suspension or revocation procedures. The
demerit point values and procedures described in this section shall apply to the suspension or revocation of


alcohol beverage licenses issued pursuant to section 14-33, cabaret licenses issued pursuant to section 14-371,


and outdoor consumption permits issued pursuant to section 14-40(k)(6).


The abbreviation "PSC" means public safety committee of the city council.


Point schedule.


The scale of demerit points is listed according to the type of alcohol beverage or cabaret license or outdoor
consumption permit violation. This demerit point system is used to identify habitually troublesome license holders


who have repeatedly violated statute and this Code for the purpose of recommending suspension or revocation of


their alcohol beverage and/or cabaret licenses or outdoor consumption permit.


(a)


(1)


(2)


(b)


(1)


Code


Section


Type of Violation Point


Value


14-461 Failure to be Licensed 100


14-33 Traffic to Underage Person 50


14-33 Traffic to Intoxicated Person 50


14-33 Underage Person on Premises 25


14-33 Failure to Keep Proper Book 50


14-33 Corporation and Agent Responsibility Violations 25


14-33 On-Premises Consumption—Class A 50


14-33 Unlawful Quantities on Containers 25


14-33 Wholesalers Restrictions 50


14-36


(a)


False Statement on Application 50


14-37 Transfer of License Without Permission 50


14-40


(b)


Sale or Dispensing in Building Off Premises 25







14-40


(c)


Failure to Post License 50


14-40


(e)


Gambling 25


14-40


(f)


Operator's License Required 50


14-40


(f)


No Licensed Bartender 50


14-40


(g)


Search of Licensed Premises 100


14-40


(h)(1)


Open After Hours 50


14-40


(h)(1)


After Hours Consumption—Class B 50


14-40


(h)(2)


Commercial Janitorial Service 25


14-40


(h)(2)


Prior Police Approval Required 25


14-40


(j)


Licensed Premises to be Sanitary 25


14-40


(j)


Leaving with Open Container 25


14-40


(k)(4)


Orderly Conduct Required 40


14-40


(k)(6)a


Outdoor Consumption Prohibited Without Permit 50


14-40


(k)(6)b


Violations of outdoor permit restrictions - Amplified sound or music 50


14-40


(k)(6)b


Violations of outdoor permit restrictions - Open After Hours 50


14-40


(k)(6)b


Violations of outdoor permit restrictions - Other Permit Restrictions 50


14-40


(l)


Closing hours 50


14-40


(m)


No Carryout After Hours 25


14-45 Nude Dancing in Licensed Establishment Prohibited 50


50-5


(c)


Noises Disturbing the Public 50







In construing the number of points to be assessed for an alleged violation, it is the ordinance section number
rather than the type of violation which shall control.


Violations, how calculated. In determining the accumulated demerit points against a license or permit within 12 months,


the city shall use the date each violation was committed as the basis for the determination.


Suspension or revocation of license or permit.


The PSC shall call before it for purposes of a revocation or suspension hearing all licensees who have


accumulated 100 points in a 12-month period as a result of court imposed convictions or adjudications. Demerit
points may be assessed, and any suspension or revocation may be imposed, against one license or permit


without affecting the continued use of any other license held by the licensee, except that an outdoor consumption


permit may not be used during any period in which a licensee's alcohol license is suspended or revoked. The PSC


may also initiate a revocation or suspension hearing of a licensee who is subject to a pending criminal charge, or
who has been convicted of any felony, misdemeanor or other offense the circumstances of which substantially


relate to the licensed activity regardless of whether such charge or conviction is included in the demerit point


schedule.


If the demerit point accumulation calculated from the date of violation meets or exceeds 100 points in a 12-month


period, 150 points in a 24-month period or 200 points in a 36-month period, the suspension shall be for not less


than three days nor more than 90 days. If the license or permit is revoked, no other license or permit shall be


granted to such licensee or for such premises for a period of 12 months from the date of revocation. The point
accumulation totals in this subsection shall be cumulative, so that a previous offense within the relevant time


period may be considered for purposes of the suspension imposed regardless of whether such previous offense


resulted in a prior suspension or other penalty.


The procedure to be used for suspension or revocation shall be that found in section 14-31.


(Code 1986, § 12.03(10); Ord. No. 0-28-05, § 1, 8-23-2005; Ord. No. 0-08-06, § 1, 1-24-2006; Ord. No. 0-24-07, § 1, 8-14-2007; Ord. No. 0-02-08, § 1,
1-8-2008; Ord. No. 0-6-08, § 2-26-2008; Ord. No. 0-24-08, § 2, 10-28-2008)


Secs. 14-43, 14-44. - Reserved.


Sec. 14-45. - Nude dancing in licensed establishments prohibited.


Intent and findings: This section is intended to exercise the city's authority, pursuant to Chapter 125, Stats., to adopt


regulations governing the sale of alcohol beverages in addition to those set forth in said chapter, and to regulate sexually


oriented businesses and related activities in order to promote the health, safety and general welfare of the citizens of the


city.


The common council has determined, based upon the findings of numerous reports, studies, and court cases, that bars


and taverns featuring live, nude, erotic dancing have in other communities tended to generate secondary effects including the


potential increase in prostitution and other sex-related offenses as well as other crimes and offenses; the increase in health
risks associated with the spread of sexually transmitted diseases; the disruption of the peace and order of the communities; the


potential for infiltration by organized crime for the purpose of unlawful conduct; the depreciation of the value of neighboring real


property; harm to the economic welfare and quality of life of the communities. The common council further finds that such


secondary effects are detrimental to the public health, safety and general welfare of citizens of the city, and that enactment of this


(c)


Any other nonenumerated violation of this article 25


(2)


(c)


(d)


(1)


(2)


(3)


(a)







secondary effects are detrimental to the public health, safety and general welfare of citizens of the city, and that enactment of this
section promotes the goal of minimizing, preventing and controlling the negative secondary effects described in this subsection.


Prohib ition. It is unlawful for any person to perform or engage in, or for any licensee or manager or agent of the licensee


to permit any person, employee, entertainer or patron to perform or engage in, any live act, demonstration, dance or


exhibition on the premises of an establishment licensed to sell alcoholic beverages which:


Shows his or her genitals, pubic area, vulva, anus or anal cleft with less than a fully opaque covering;


Shows any portion of the female breast below a point immediately above the top of the areola, not completely and


opaquely covered; or


Shows the covered male genitals in a discernibly turgid state.


Exemptions. The provisions of this section do not apply to the following licensed establishments: theaters, performing
arts centers, civic centers and dinner theaters where live dance, ballet, music and dramatic performances of serious


artistic, social and political merit are offered on a regular basis and in which the predominant business or attraction is not


the offering to customers of entertainment which is intended to provide sexual stimulation or sexual gratification to such


customers and where the establishment is not distinguished by an emphasis on, or the advertising or promotion of,
employees engaging in nude dancing.


Penalties. Any person, partnership or corporation who violates any of the provisions of this section shall be subject to a


forfeiture of not less than $250.00 and not more than $1,000.00 per violation. A separate offense and violation shall be
deemed committed on each day on which a violation occurs or continues. In addition, violation of this chapter constitutes


sufficient grounds for suspending, revoking or nonrenewing an alcohol beverage license under section 125.12, Wis.


Stats.


(Ord. No. 0-35-07, § 1, 10-23-2007; Ord. No. 0-22-08, § 1, 9-10-2008)


Secs. 14-46—14-70. - Reserved.


(b)


(1)


(2)


(3)


(c)


(d)





























PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES
Wednesday, April 28, 2010 – 6:00 p.m.
Hall of Fame Room, City Hall


Application for a Class “B” Beer & Class “C” Wine License: Chris Overson
agent, dba The Break Room & Lounge, located at 556 E Main Street: Moved by
Carter, seconded by Christianson, to table to the next Public Safety meeting in order for
Mr. Overson to get an occupancy permit for the premises. Carried unanimously.







mhougan

Pencil







mhougan

Line



mhougan

Line



mhougan

Pencil



mhougan

Pencil



mhougan

Pencil



mhougan

Pencil



mhougan

Pencil



mhougan

Pencil



mhougan

Pencil







mhougan

Pencil



mhougan

Pencil



mhougan

Pencil



mhougan

Pencil



mhougan

Pencil



mhougan

Pencil
































































Hello Ross,


I have two trials that night, one at 6pm and one at 6:15. I will come to the meeting once the trials
are over.


I have attached a proposed amendment that I believe will address the zoning issues related to
outdoor seating and patio areas for taverns and restaurants. This amendment will be reviewed at
the June 7th Planning Commission meeting.


I see outdoor alcohol consumption as a separate issue.


Some examples scenarios (assuming the attached zoning ordinance amendment is adopted):


 Someone wants to open the old Broux House (which is currently vacant) as a new
restaurant with outdoor dining and alcohol consumption. By zoning there is already a
grandfathered outdoor seating area which can be continued. The outdoor alcohol
consumption would need to be addressed through Public Safety/Council.


 A tavern owner wants to add an outdoor area specifically for people to smoke. A
conditional use permit would be required through Planning Commission/Council.


 A tavern owner wants to hold a one day special event with outdoor alcohol consumption
and a band. The temporary outdoor alcohol consumption would be addressed through
Public Safety/Council. A temporary use permit is required through the Department of
Planning & Development.


The key will be to provide applicants with all the information they will need to try to accomplish
whatever scenario they seek. I think we are heading in the right direction with the updated
outdoor consumption application.


Let me know if you have any questions,


Michael P. Stacey


City of Stoughton


Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner


381 E. Main Street


Stoughton, WI 53589







O – – 10


AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTIONS 78-206(4)(h) & 78-105(4)(b)2b
OF THE STOUGHTON MUNICIPAL CODE


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin, do ordain as


follows:


1. Sections 78-206(4)(h) & 78-105(4)(b)2b of the Stoughton Municipal Zoning Code are


hereby amended and shall read as follows:


Sec. 78-206(4)(h) Indoor Commercial Entertainment


(a) Indoor Commercial Entertainment


Description: Indoor commercial entertainment land uses include all land uses which
provide entertainment services entirely primarily within an enclosed building. Outdoor
seating or patio areas associated with a proposed indoor commercial entertainment
land use shall be allowed subject to city approval of a site plan showing any such
proposed outdoor seating or patio area. Such activities often have operating hours
which extend significantly later than most other commercial land uses. Examples of
such land uses include restaurants, taverns, theaters, health or fitness centers, all
forms of training studios (dance, art, martial arts, etc.), bowling alleys, arcades, roller
rinks, and pool halls.


1. Regulations:


a. If located on the same side of the building as abutting residentially zoned
property, no customer entrance of any kind shall be permitted within 150 100
feet, or as far as possible, of a residentially zoned property.


b. Facility shall provide bufferyard with minimum opacity of .60 along all borders of
the property abutting residentially zoned property (see Section 78-610).


2. Parking Requirements:


One space per every three patron seats or lockers (whichever is greater); or one
space per three persons at the maximum capacity of the establishment; (whichever
is greater).


Sec. 78-105(4)(b)2b Planned Business (PB) District, Principal Land Uses Permitted as
Conditional Use:


Outdoor Commercial Entertainment (per Section 78-206(4)(i)







2. This ordinance shall take effect after passage and publications as required by law.


Adopted on roll call at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Stoughton held
on the day of , 2010.


VOTE: APPROVED:


Ayes: ________________________
Donna L. Olson, Mayor


Noes:


Adopted: ATTEST:


Published: __________________________
Luann J. Alme, City Clerk


s:\common\mps\ordinancechanges\ch78\indoorcommercialentertainment







PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES
Wednesday, April 28, 2010 – 6:00 p.m.
Hall of Fame Room, City Hall


Application for an Outdoor Alcohol Consumption Permit: Dave Atkins agent, dba
Dave’s Water’s Edge Tavern located at 324 S. Water Street: Moved by Carter,
seconded by Christianson, to table to the next Public Safety meeting. Carried
unanimously.




























PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES
Wednesday, April 28, 2010 – 6:00 p.m.
Hall of Fame Room, City Hall


Application for an Outdoor Alcohol Consumption Permit: Teresa Knop agent,
dba Pack R Place, located at 208 W. Main Street: Moved by Christianson, seconded
by Carter to table to the next Public Safety meeting. Carried unanimously.
















PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES
Wednesday, April 28, 2010 – 6:00 p.m.
Hall of Fame Room, City Hall


Request to amend Ordinance Section 6-2: Keeping of animals, fowl and bees
prohibited: Moved by Scovotti, seconded by Carter to direct the Clerks office staff to
research surrounding city ordinances along with a city outside of Wisconsin regarding
information pertaining to keeping of chickens, and bring back the data to the next public
safety meeting. The data will be reviewed to determine supporting an amendment to
Ordinance Section 6-2: keeping of animals, fowl and bee’s prohibited. Carried
unanimously.
































































































Common Backyard Chicken Objections


compiled by Chickens in Stoughton?!, May 8, 2010
Last Update: June 14, 2010


Those who are opposed to a chicken ordinance often object because they are not knowledgeable about
chickens and are unfamiliar with the concept of urban hen-keeping. For example, they frequently do not
understand that roosters are not needed for eggs, or that chickens eat bugs, weeds, and lawn clippings or
that hens are quiet and harmless. They are surprised to learn that hens are fun and entertaining and
make great pets because they have never been around them. Because they are unfamiliar, their opinions
are based on fear, not facts, and they believe many of the myths that are addressed in this document and
proven to be false.


Some people object to a chicken ordinance because their experience with chickens stems from rural farms
or commercial poultry operations where chickens are raised by the hundreds or thousands, often in
crowded and unsanitary conditions. In those situations, chickens are not regarded as pets. Raising
chickens for profit, on a large scale, is a completely different situation than keeping a few egg-laying hens
as pets. It’s like comparing the family dog to a puppy mill operation.


Before addressing objections it is important to have some idea as to the magnitude of the problem. Our
current estimate of the number of Stoughton residents that will choose to keep hens in their backyards is
fifty. If each kept the maximum proposed of four, that would equal a total of 200 hens in Stoughton. The
rationale for this estimate is described at the end of this document.


What follows are some common myths that surround backyard chicken keeping and attempts to correct
them.


1. "Chickens are noisy"


Any proposed ordinance would not allow roosters, which are by far the noisiest. Hens are rather quiet,
although they tend to be quite proud and vocal after an egg is laid. The noise level during this 5 minute
squawking period has been measured at around 63 decibels, or about the level of two people talking.


Other than their post-laying squawking, normal hen sounds are not audible at 25 feet. And at night,
chickens are absolutely silent. Overall, they are far quieter than a barking dog, lawn mower, leaf blower,
passing truck, children playing and other common neighborhood sounds.


2. "Chickens are smelly"


Chickens themselves are not smelly. Yes, chicken waste can be smelly, but no more than dog and cat
waste. The conscientiousness of the pet owner plays a large part in the smell and cleanliness of their
animals.


Many people's objection to chickens comes from the smell given off by large commercial operations,
where thousands of chickens are kept in close quarters. In these large facilities the buildup of ammonia
from the sheer volume of solid waste creates a powerful smell, particularly on warm days. But comparing
the keeping of a micro-flock of 4 hens to a large farm-based operation is like comparing the keeping of the
family dog to a commercial puppy mill.


In a commercial farm-based operation, profitability is the primary motivating factor. Chickens are viewed
as a commodity and are raised solely for meat and/or egg production. Many are kept in a density that is
substantially greater than that of a few hens in a backyard. The United Egg Producers' 2010 Animal
Husbandry Guidelines recommends that each laying hen be given as little as 68 square inches of space to
live their entire lives. Compacting hundreds or thousands of hens at this density leads to an ammonia
buildup that is difficult to manage.


1







Contrast this with typical backyard hen guidelines, where each hen has 2 to 4 square feet of coop space,
and are let out into an enclosed pen of 10 square feet per bird. Enjoying 30 times the space given to
commercially-raised hens, ammonia build-up is virtually eliminated.


In addition, contrast the volume of waste produced by a chicken to that of the average dog. The average
dog produces 12 ounces of solid waste and a 1.5 ounces of urine per day, whereas the average chicken
produces 1.5 ounces of total waste per day (chickens do not produce a separate urine flow). Thus, the
estimated 2,000 dogs in Stoughton produce over 1,500 pounds of solid waste each day. The 200 hens
projected to be kept in Stoughton will produce less than 20 pounds of waste per day.


And by its very nature, chicken waste is less of a public health threat, and is safe to apply to gardens after
composting. The solid waste that dogs produce is a bio-hazard and cannot be safely composted for use in
vegetable gardens. Stoughton residents add over 180 tons of dog waste to garbage landfills each year,
with an additional 120 tons being washed directly into our environment.


3. "Chickens attract other animals"


Typical predators of adult and baby chickens include hawks (common in Stoughton), foxes (uncommon),
raccoons (common), skunks (uncommon) and opossum (common). This is the same list of animals that
stalk our wild squirrels, ducks, geese, rabbits, song birds and chipmunks. Any predators that are attracted
to chickens are already living among us.


Adding 200 fully contained hens to the total population of wild animals will have little if any measurable
impact on predator interest.


In addition, unlike the wild squirrels, ducks, geese, rabbits, song birds and chipmunks, domestic backyard
chickens roost at night in secure, dig-proof enclosures, preventing nocturnal animal raids. During the day
they are always kept in a covered run or fenced enclosure. They are pets that owners responsibly protect.


The larger potential threat is posed by domestic dogs and cats illegally roaming the backyards of homes.
Although most domestic cats would have a tough time with a full grown hen (most can defend themselves
against cats), roaming dogs could harass chickens by chasing them, potentially even killing them. Of
course, loose dogs are also a threat to children, adults, other dogs and vehicular traffic.


But since urban hens are confined at all times, and our existing laws prohibit at-large dogs and cats, we
do not anticipate this to be a significant problem.


4. "Chickens attract rodents"


It is the chicken feed that attracts rodents, not the chickens themselves (FYI: adult chickens will kill and
will eat small rodents).


There are currently thousands of bags of dog and cat food being stored throughout the city without
problem. And each residence has at least one garbage container full of food scraps and waste that a
rodent would love to eat. Much like anything else, chicken feed that is securely contained will prevent
rodents from being a problem.


Many of the same rodents that would eat chicken feed are also attracted to wild bird feed that is outside
and unprotected in backyards.


Adding an additional 50 bags of chicken feed to our city is of little increased concern.


5. "Chickens spread deadly diseases"


Unlike cats and dogs which are prime vectors for rabies, parasites, and tick-borne diseases, backyard
chickens actually make your yard safer by consuming ticks, mosquitoes and other pests.


However, a typical concern is about the possibility of spreading avian influenza ("bird flu") by backyard


2







hens. Avian flu is spread through direct contact with the contaminated feces and secretions of sick
migratory birds, and is currently only present in Asia, Africa and Eastern Europe (i.e., bird flu is not
currently in the United States). Since backyard chickens are fully contained at all times and do not come
in contact with migratory birds, the transmission path is not present.


Even if a backyard chicken should contract bird flu, the size of the flock and its lack of contact with other
birds would limit the impact to the micro-flock. The United States Humane Society and the United Nations
contend that large commercial poultry operations are accelerants of the spread of poultry diseases and
that small flocks are the solution to limiting the impacts of avian influenza and other diseases.


Note that it is very rare that avian influenza be transmitted from bird to human (there have been
approximately 500 cases worldwide), and it is even rarer to jump from human to human (if it has occurred
at all).


6. "The city will be overrun with chickens"
It is unlikely that more than a very small percentage of residents will want to raise chickens. Chickens
tend to be a "specialty pet" and are not what the average person thinks of when they go pet shopping.
Since passing their chicken ordinance in 2004, Madison, a city 20 times the size of Stoughton, has
averaged less than 100 permits per year.


Our estimate is that a total of 200 hens will be present in the City of Stoughton. The proposed ordinance
would not allow chickens to roam freely. They will be required to be kept in coops, runs and fenced
enclosures at all times.


7. "Chickens are a nuisance"


Like any animal, they are subject to their own whims and their owners' control. By and large, hens are
quieter, cleaner and more easily managed than dogs, and certainly more so than illegal, outdoor cats.
Their owners generally are appreciative of the eggs produced, and ensure that their hens have a clean,
safe, productive environment in which to live.


8. "I don't want to stare at some huge, dilapidated chicken coop"


The modern backyard chicken coop is a distant relative to the typical farm coop. Since they are located in
backyards, most city coops are attractive, efficient structures that are well maintained.


Each hen needs about 3-6 square feet of coop space and 6-10 square feet of covered run. For 4 hens this
would total about 64 square feet, or a structure 8' x 8'. Most garden sheds, trampolines and swing sets
are larger than the average backyard coop and run.


Many areas of the city have deed restrictions that control what types of structures can be erected. Chicken
coops and runs would fall under the control of these restrictions (i.e., the city ordinance does not override
deed restrictions).


9. "If we allow some to have chickens, the next person will want Emus, Ducks,
Pigs, etc."


It is not by chance that female chickens (hens) are getting all the attention for backyard keeping. Hens
are ideally suited for small, urban lots due to several unique characteristics not possessed by other
animals:


• They are small and have low space requirements
• They are quiet
• They are easy to contain and manage
• Their manure is useable in vegetable gardens
• They provide food without being slaughtered
• They are relatively cheap to raise
• They are useful in controlling insects and other pests
• They can't fly well or far, and a painless wing clipping keeps them from flying at all


3







• They stay close to home if they should happen to get loose
• They go to sleep in the same place every day at sundown
• They don't require specialized or hard-to-learn skills to keep
• Most varieties are not exotic and are readily available


Other animals fail in one or more of these areas. An urban environment would not be humane or practical
for their keeping.


10. "The Stoughton Police Department does not have the manpower to enforce
these new rules"


Given the expected volume of chickens in Stoughton, we think that problems will be few and far between.
For example, Madison gets fewer than 10 calls per year, and most of those are easily managed (generally
keeping illegal roosters or having too many hens).


Responsible owners will not allow their hens to roam outside of their enclosures, so the problem of loose
animals will be insignificant.


Nonetheless, we must be prepared to deal with the occasional complaint about roosters, smell or numbers
of hens. There are several aspects of enforcement:


• The annual permit process. Those with habitual violations will have their permit refused, much like
alcohol licenses are handled today


• Response to complaints will be handled by the Police Department. Owners will be cited just as with
dogs and cats


• Animals that must be picked up or confiscated will first be taken to a local vet clinic or holding pen
and then to the Dane County Humane Society, just as dogs and cats are handled today.


11. "If you want farm animals, move out to the country"


The same objection could be raised about community gardens or even individual gardens within backyards
throughout the city.


The definition of "pets" changes over time. For example, rabbits were once considered farm animals,
raised only for meat. Dogs were kept only for their ability to herd and protect farms. Cats were raised
solely to reduce the rodent population. Now all of these are considered pets and are allowed to be kept
within the city limits.


Micro-flocks of backyard hens are treated more as pets than livestock, often "spoiled" and fawned over as
much as a domestic dog or cat. Since most owners want to ensure nutritious egg production, they are
generally kept in good health, given organic feed and kept clean and secure.


The raising of a few hens does not require the space, expense and management of a farm in the country.
They are being successfully raised in the backyards of cities throughout the US. In Wisconsin, Madison,
Jefferson, Fort Atkinson, New Berlin, Neenah and others allow micro-flocks in backyards.


Other cities across the country allowing backyard chickens include Concord NH, New Haven CT, San
Francisco CA, Minneapolis MN, Boston MA, Phoenix AZ, Chicago IL, New York City, Syracuse NY, Anaheim
CA, Mobile AL, New Orleans LA, Buffalo NY, Hartford CT, Baltimore MD, Portland OR, Houston TX, Miami
FL, San Jose CA, Las Vegas NV, Vallejo CA,Topeka KS, Santa Rosa CA, Santa Fe NM, Little Rock AK,
Burlington VT, Richmond VA, San Antonio TX, Albuquerque NM, Bakersfield CA, Des Moines IA, Winston-
Salem NC, Greensboro NC, Lafayette CA, Seattle WA, Oakland CA, Denver CO, Dallas TX, Laredo TX, Salt
Lake City UT, St, Louis MO, Berkeley CA, Spokane WA, Indianapolis IN, Lexington KY and Louisville KY.
The list is growing every year.


4







12. "Those cities that allow chickens have separate Animal Control
departments to handle complaints"


While this is not true in all cases, it is true in the larger cities. However, these Animal Control departments
existed long before the modern backyard chicken movement. They were instituted to handle domestic dog
and cat complaints and to control wild animals found roaming the city.


Due to our size, the City of Stoughton has not needed a separate department for animal control. The
experience of other cities indicates that the additional effort required to manage the 200 hens of
Stoughton will be minimal, estimated at an additional call per month.


A separate department is simply not needed to handle the projected complaints.


13. "There will be those that abuse or ignore the rules"


True, but a well-crafted law is designed to be fair and enforceable. Our proposed ordinance has the
following provisions:


1. Hens only, no roosters
2. A limits of 4 hens
3. Must have a secure coop and must be fenced or in an enclosure at all times
4. Subject to existing noise, nuisance and animal control laws
5. Structures (coops and runs) must conform to existing ordinances and must be located a minimum


of 4' inside the lot line and 25' from neighbors
6. No butchering within the city limits
7. Annual permit required, and can be refused or revoked for repeated violations


This proposed ordinance is modeled after successful ordinances of other cities.


14. "The runoff from the chicken feces will pollute our river"


Issues of manure runoff from egg‐producing chickens are associated with huge factory‐style egg farms
that generate tons of manure each day in a very concentrated area. Low‐density backyard chicken keeping
is the solution to runoff issues, not the problem. Gardeners using commercial organic fertilizers are very
likely to be using chicken‐manure based products, and those keeping chickens will have less need for even
these.


So keeping chickens will likely not increase the net amount of organic fertilizers used; most
chicken‐keeping gardeners will simply be producing it themselves rather than purchasing it.


However, runoff from dog waste laying on the ground is a current and significant problem. Studies have
shown that on average 40% of owners do not pickup the solid waste from their dogs. In Stoughton, this
amounts to an estimated 120 tons annually of dog waste being washed into our environment.


15. "A coop next door will make my property value go down"


We have been unable to uncover any evidence to support this statement. Instead, most Realtors when
asked seem to indicate that there are many, many factors that go into home valuation, and that animals
that are well behaved and contained properly have little or no negative impact on property values. Indeed,
many contend that animals are an inherent part of urban living, and are to be expected in a healthy
neighborhood.


Thomas E. Malone, Management Analyst to the City of Janesville, WI, in a February 16, 2010 Memo to the
Janesville City Council, wrote "
...staff has been asked to look into the matter of whether raising chickens within city limits would impact
property values. There has been no empirical evidence to suggest a positive or negative impact on home
values and staff is unable to quantify the potential effect keeping chickens would have on adjacent
properties."


5







16. "How did you arrive at your estimate of 200 hens in Stoughton?"


Several factors went into our estimate, but in the end it is simply an educated guess. Here are the factors
that we used:


• Madison, a city of 20 times our population, 15 times if you remove the student population, issues
approximately 75 permits annually. However, rumor is that some do not obtain a permit. So we
doubled the number to 150 chicken keeping households in Madison. That would represent about
600 hens.


• There are approximately 55 people on Chickens in Stoughton?!'s email list, 65 on our petition,
100 followers on Facebook, and 25 that attended our first meeting. While we have received
substantial interest since the Courier-Hub article was published, these numbers have plateaued.
(Note that many on these lists represent couples and are double counted)


• Most cities have more people interested in keeping hens than are actually keeping hens.


So, using Madison ratios, we would have 10 households keeping hens, representing a total of 40 hens. We
feel that number is too low.


Using our "membership" numbers, taking out non-Stoughton residents and eliminating double counting for
couples, we would estimate 40 households keeping hens, for a total of 160 hens. We feel that is about
right, but added 25% more to arrive at our estimate of 200 hens.


Consider that many of the newer neighborhoods in Stoughton have deed restrictions on outbuildings and
animals. This will lower the number of potential chicken keeping residences.


6





		Common Backyard Chicken Objections

		1. "Chickens are noisy"

		2. "Chickens are smelly"

		3. "Chickens attract other animals"

		4. "Chickens attract rodents"

		5. "Chickens spread deadly diseases"

		7. "Chickens are a nuisance"

		9. "If we allow some to have chickens, the next person will want Emus, Ducks, Pigs, etc."

		10. "The Stoughton Police Department does not have the manpower to enforce these new rules"

		11. "If you want farm animals, move out to the country"

		12. "Those cities that allow chickens have separate Animal Control departments to handle complaints"

		13. "There will be those that abuse or ignore the rules"

		14. "The runoff from the chicken feces will pollute our river"

		15. "A coop next door will make my property value go down"










Stoughton Public Safety Committee Briefing
compiled by Chickens in Stoughton?!, June 9, 2010


Last Update: June 14, 2010


Chickens in Stoughton?! is a loosely-organized group of families and individuals that are requesting the city 
revise its laws to enable small micro-flocks of up to to four female chickens (hens) to be kept within the city 
limits, with reasonable restrictions. We feel that the raising of chickens provides both children and adults an 
education in local, sustainable food practices, provides food security, promotes green living, expands our local 
food supply and provides an opportunity to learn responsibility and compassion towards animals.
 
In Stoughton, the potential keeping of chickens within the city limits impacts both the Municipal Code and the 
Zoning Ordinance. This document, prepared specifically for the Public Safety Committee, attempts to provide 
background to some of the issues they are likely to discuss and consider.


Why Chickens?
Cities all across the nation are reconsidering bans on backyard poultry that were enacted from the 1950s 
population migration from farm to urban environment. Recently, cities like Portland, Boise, Madison, 
Denver, Seattle, and Fort Collins have relaxed their laws and have begun allowing residents to keep a few 
backyard hens. According to Newsweek magazine, more than 65% of major cities now have chicken-keeping 
ordinances.
 
A list of comparable cities within Wisconsin that allow hens to be kept within the city limits includes: Fort 
Atkinson (pop. 11,895), Jefferson (pop. 7,822), Madison (pop. 231,916), Neenah (pop. 25,060), New Berlin 
(pop. 38,649), and Sheboygan (pop. 47,895). Each cites’ ordinance features are included at the end of this 
document.
 
While everyone has their own reasons for embracing the idea of raising chickens for eggs in their own 
backyards, the recent interest in the last decade has accelerated due to the following factors:
 


1. Increased awareness of individual impacts on the environment (e.g., local food and “green living”)
2. Increased suspicion regarding the safety of food produced by large factories
3. Increased awareness of the possible need to access alternative food sources in case of emergency.


Why Not?
Those who are opposed to a chicken ordinance often object because they are not knowledgeable about 
chickens and are unfamiliar with the concept of urban hen-keeping. For example, they frequently do not 
understand that roosters are not needed for hens to lay eggs, or that chickens eat bugs, weeds, and lawn 
clippings, or that hens are quiet and harmless. They are surprised to learn that hens are fun and entertaining 
and make great pets because they have never been around them. Because they are unfamiliar, their opinions 
are based on fear, not facts, and they believe many of the myths that surround urban chickens.
 
Some people object to a chicken ordinance because their experience with chickens stems from rural farms 
or commercial poultry operations where chickens are raised by the hundreds or thousands, and where many 
spend their entire lives in less space than a sheet of paper. In these operations, odor and environmental 
impact often take a backseat to production levels and profit.
 
Micro-flocks of chickens kept in an urban environment are as dissimilar to the above as a family dog is to a 
large puppy mill. With attractive coops that are smaller than the typical child’s playset and that blend in with the 
surrounding neighborhood, backyard chickens are the “spoiled cousins” of the typical farmyard or production 
hen. Much like their keepers, a clean and comfortable habitat is the norm for city chickens.







 
And then some object based on the threat of disease, without placing the threat in the context of risks already 
accepted within our city. For example, the over 300 tons of solid waste Stoughton dogs and cats produce 
annually is far more dangerous than the 6,600 pounds of projected chicken waste. Dog and cat waste, which 
is a biohazard, cannot be safely applied to vegetable crops, even after composting, as it harbors many human 
pathogens. Chicken waste carries no such elevated threat and is readily compostable.
 
Frequently, bird flu and salmonella are raised as threats that could increase with the presence of backyard 
chickens. Yet, H5N1 avian influenza, or “bird flu,” is not present in the United States, despite a population of 
over 1.5 billion chickens. While it would be a huge threat to poultry should it reach our shores, bird-to-human 
transmission is very rare, and subsequent human-to-human transmission is even rarer. Since it presents such 
a risk to the poultry industry, it is one of the most closely monitored diseases in Wisconsin, as well as the 
United States.
 
Likewise, the threat of salmonella is already present in our environment. Most animals carry salmonella in their 
intestines. The vast majority of salmonella illness in humans comes from improperly prepared food, purchased 
from commercial sources. As we have learned, proper personal hygiene and prudent food preparation 
prevents most salmonella transmission. 


Estimated Population of Hens in Stoughton
Before continuing it is important to have some idea as to the magnitude of the proposal. Our current estimate 
of the number of Stoughton residents that will choose to keep hens in their backyards is fifty. If each kept the 
maximum proposed of four, that would equal a total of 200 hens in Stoughton.
 
Several factors went into our estimate, but in the end it is simply an educated guess:
 


● Madison, a city of 15 times our population (with UW students excluded), issues approximately 75 
permits annually. However, rumor is that some do not obtain a permit. So we doubled the number to 
150 chicken keeping households in Madison. That would represent about 600 hens.


● There are approximately 55 people on Chickens in Stoughton?!'s email list, 65 on our petition, 100 
followers on Facebook, and 25 that attended our first meeting. While we have received substantial 
interest since the Courier-Hub article was published and the WISC-TV interview was aired, the 
membership numbers have plateaued. (Note that many on these lists represent couples and are double 
counted)


● Most cities have more people interested in keeping hens than are actually keeping hens.
 


So, using Madison ratios, we would have 10 Stoughton households keeping hens, representing a total of 40 
hens. We feel that number is too low.
 
Using our "membership" numbers, taking out non-Stoughton residents and eliminating double counting for 
couples, we would estimate 40 households keeping hens, for a total of 160 hens. We feel that is about right, 
but added 25% more to arrive at our estimate of 200 hens.
 
Consider that many of the newer neighborhoods in Stoughton have deed restrictions on outbuildings and 
animals. This will lower the number of potential chicken keeping residences.
 
To place our estimate in context, consider that approximately 37% of Stoughton households own at least one 
dog, and 32% at least one cat (using national averages). Most households keeping dogs and cats have more 
than one (1.7 for dogs; 2.2 for cats). With 4,700 households in Stoughton, there are well over 2,000 dogs and 
an equal number of cats currently residing in the city. For simplicity, a population of 2,000 dogs and 2,000 cats 
are used in this document, which are low conservative estimates.







 


Concerns of Communities Considering Urban Chickens
In general, communities considering chickens in an urban environment have to satisfy concerns in three areas:
 


1. Structural
a. How big are the coops and runs?
b. How will the animals be contained?
c. What zoning districts are they permitted?
d. Where on the lot can the coops and runs be placed?
e. Do they need building permits?


 


2. Environmental
a. How will noise be controlled?
b. How will odors be controlled?
c. Will there be an increase in predators?
d. Will there be an increase in scavengers?
e. Will there be an increased risk for human-transmittable disease?


 


3. Enforcement
a. Will licensing be required?
b. How will violations be handled?
c. What additional effort is required to enforce these standards?


 
Establishing reasonable restrictions and guidelines in these areas makes for rules that are fair to residents and 
easy to enforce.


Proposed Ordinance Changes
To address these concerns, the following changes are proposed and are before you today:
 


In the Municipal Code
● Maximum of 4 hens allowed, no roosters
● No butchering within the city limits
● Hens contained at all times in coop, run or fenced enclosure
● Annual city license application with fee of $15
● Wisconsin Department of Agricultural premise registration required
● Existing fowl noise ordinance applies (Sec. 6-5)
● Existing noxious odor ordinance applies (Sec. 58-8)
● Police enforcement of at-large animals handled as with dogs and cats


In the Zoning Code
(while the Public Safety Committee is not specifically charged with reviewing changes to the Zoning Code, we 
thought it would be beneficial to list what the proposed changes are here, so that you may see the proposed 
zoning changes within context)


● Keeping of a maximum of 4 hens allowed as an accessory land use by right on single-family lots in 
districts ER-1, SR-3, SR-4, SR-5 and SR-6


● Annual city license required
● Coop/runs must be in rear yard only
● Coop and run must be at least 25’ from a all residential structures on adjacent lots
● All zoning requirements related to accessory structures are exempt for coops and runs less than 65 


square feet in size
● Electrical work requires a permit


 
It is important to note that these rules do not override any deed restrictions that run with the land on 
outbuildings and animals. These deed restrictions are common in newer subdivisions in Stoughton.







Concerns Addressed
Revisiting the list of concerns, here is how the proposed ordinance changes will address them:
 


1. Structural
a. How big are the coops and runs? A typical setup for 4 hens would have a footprint of less than 


65 square feet, or less than a child’s playset or trampoline. The urban coop is attractive and 
blends well with neighborhood aesthetics. (Note that general upkeep is covered as for other 
outbuildings in Stoughton).


 
b. How will the animals be contained? Hens are required to be contained at all times. Unlike dogs 


and outdoor cats, hens have relatively small real estate requirements. Commercial poultry are 
usually provided 1-2 square feet for the entire life—urban chickens can use 30 times as much 
and still fit comfortably in a neighborhood.


 
c. What zoning districts are they permitted in? Although many cities allow hens to be raised in 


multi-family lots, the proposed changes for Stoughton are restricting them to single-family lots 
only. Note that any lot with deed restrictions that do not allow outbuildings will similarly be 
prevented from erecting a coop.


 
d. Where on the lot can the coops and runs be placed? The proposed changes allow coops and 


runs in the rear yard only, which is at or behind the rear plane of the residential building. They 
also must be located at least 4’ within the lot line and at lest 25’ from residential structures on 
adjacent lots.


 
e. Do they need building permits? After discussions with the Planning Department and a review 


of other outbuilding requirements, they recommended that coops and runs less than 65 square 
feet be exempt from zoning requirements related to accessory structures like swingsets and 
playsets.


 
2. Environmental


a. How will noise be controlled? Enforced by existing ord. Sec. 6-5 and Zoning Code Sec. 78-709. 
The prohibition of roosters eliminates 99% of the noise issue. Normal hen sounds are virtually 
inaudible at 25’. After laying an egg, hens will squawk for a few minutes at a measured level of 
approximately 65 decibels, the sound of a conversation.


 
b. How will odors be controlled? Enforced by existing ord. Sec 58-8(8) and Zoning Code Sec. 78-


711. Hens themselves do not smell, their solid waste does. To a large extent, the control of odor 
from animal waste is the responsibility of the owner, and all animal waste smells. Each hen will 
produce about 1.5 ounces of solid waste each day, half of which is eliminated at night in the 
coop, versus 12 ounces for the average dog. Daily output from Stoughton hens is projected to 
be less than 20 pounds, versus 1,500 pounds from dogs.


 
Solid waste from hens is compostable and is safe to apply to vegetable gardens, whereas dog 
and cat waste is a bio-hazard and cannot be utilized on food plants, even after composting.


 
c. Will there be an increase in predators? With the large population of wild song birds, geese, 


ducks, rabbits, squirrels, chipmunks, mice, voles, etc. already in Stoughton, the addition of 200 
hens is an insignificant increase in attractive elements. The predators of these animals, primarily 
raccoons, hawks, owls and illegally roaming domestic cats, are already among us. Backyard 
hens are contained at all times in secure enclosures and runs, which wild animals are not. (FYI, 
a cat would not take on a full size hen, and it would take a large hawk to carry off a 7 pound 
hen).







 
d. Will there be an increase in scavengers? Scavengers such as mice, rats and crows are 


attracted to food, not the animals themselves. Given that there are approximately 6,000 garbage 
cans, 2,000 bags of dog food, 2,000 bags of cat food, and countless bags of wild bird seed and 
outdoor feeders in Stoughton already, the addition of 50 bags of chicken feed is an insignificant 
increase. Proper storage in a covered container eliminates all possibility of unwanted rodents.


 
e. Will there be an increased risk for human-transmittable disease? While there are many diseases 


to chose from, not only with hens but other domestic animals, commonly singled out for concern 
with hens are salmonella and avian influenza (”bird flu”):


● Salmonella is a bacterium that generally causes mild symptoms in humans, although it 
can be serious in some. It lives in the intestinal tracks of most animals, and is usually 
transmitted to humans by eating foods contaminated with feces, either directly or 
through cross-contamination.
 
The same set of guidelines used to control exposure to salmonella in commercially 
available food should be followed when handling backyard hens and eggs: Wash hands 
and surfaces often, don’t cross-contaminate, cook eggs to safe temperatures, and 
refrigerate promptly.
 


● Avian Influenza is a very dangerous disease to poultry. The version of most concern is 
designated “H5N1”, and it comes in two forms: low-pathogenic and high-pathogenic. 
The “low-path” type generally causes mild symptoms in chickens, lowering egg 
production and slowing growth. The “high-path” version generally is fatal to poultry, and 
can sweep through large populations of closely confined chickens in a matter of hours.
 
Like all influenza, H5N1 is caused by a virus. In rare cases it has mutated to a form that 
can be transmitted from birds to humans—approximately 500 known cases worldwide. 
Subsequent transmission from human to human is even more rare, if it has occurred at 
all. With over 50 billion chickens worldwide, H5N1 is one of the most closely monitored 
viruses in the world. It is not present in the United States, nor the whole Western 
Hemisphere, at this time.
 
Transmission of H5N1 is possible only with contact of infected bird mucous and feces. 
Since the virus is not present in Wisconsin, and backyard flocks are fully contained and 
do not have access to wild birds, the risk is minimal.
 
The USDA publishes a brochure that outlines a six-step process to safeguard backyard 
flocks from common transmittable poultry diseases.


 
3. Enforcement


a. Will licensing be required? Yes, an annual license fee of $15 per household will be required. 
Unlike dog licensing, all of this money will be retained by Stoughton.


 
b. How will violations be handled? SPD would handle all at-large, bites and noise complaints with 


hens just as they do with dogs and cats. The Zoning Administrator would handle all coop/run 
location issues as they do with all outbuildings. The Clerk’s office would handle all licensing 
application, renewal and revocation actions.







 
c. What additional SPD effort is required to enforce these standards? It is estimated that adding 


200 hens to the Stoughton animal population will amount to an increase of less than 3% in SPD 
animal enforcement calls, and only a 0.1% increase in overall calls. This number is calculated 
as follows:


Estimated population of dogs and cats in Stoughton = 4,000+
Percentage increase of 200 hens to 4,000 dogs and cats = 5%
Annual animal control calls for dogs, cats and other animals = 454 (2008)
5% of all animal calls by SPD = 23 additional calls per year
Reduce calls by half because of hen nightime silence, non-aggressiveness = 12 calls
12 additional calls out of 11,100 total SPD calls per year (2008) = 0.1%


 
It is felt that all common concerns are handled by these ordinance changes. However, there are many 
myths regarding the keeping of hens that are not directly addressed herein. Please refer to the Chickens in 
Stoughton?! publication, Common Backyard Chicken Objections, for further information.


Conclusion
The net effect of these regulations may seem onerous to some potential chicken keepers. However, by and 
large most communities have willingly accepted them as being a reasonable compromise required to address 
both the concerns of residents and the humane treatment of chickens within the city limits.
 
The experience of other cities has demonstrated that the keeping of a few hens is compatible with an urban 
environment. Cities of all sizes have allowed keeping of hens without incident. Few have reported any 
significant increase in noise, odor, or visual complaints, and have reported relatively minor increases in 
enforcement effort. We have provided a sampling of responses from other cities regarding enforcement at the 
end of this document.
 
We feel that the unique properties of hens make them the “greenest” animal capable of being kept in an 
urban environment. They are fully compatible with society’s blossoming recognition that we must all consider 
environmental impacts when evaluating our daily activities, and that becoming more local and sustainable 
in our food choices is one manner in which to accomplish this. Chickens fit completely with the objective of 
backyard vegetable gardening and Stoughton’s recent commitment to a community garden at Lowell Park.
 
The benefits of small micro-flocks of hens far outweighs the minor impacts on city services and residential 
living. We feel that the time has come for Stoughton to allow backyard hens.







 


Appendices


Other Cities Allowing Urban Chickens
The following is a partial list of cities that allow chickens to be kept in their city limits: Concord NH, New Haven 
CT, San Francisco CA, Minneapolis MN, Boston MA, Phoenix AZ, Chicago IL, New York City, Syracuse NY, 
Anaheim CA, Mobile AL, New Orleans LA, Buffalo NY, Hartford CT, Baltimore MD, Portland OR, Houston TX, 
Miami FL, San Jose CA, Las Vegas NV, Vallejo CA,Topeka KS, Santa Rosa CA, Santa Fe NM, Little Rock AK, 
Burlington VT, Richmond VA, San Antonio TX, Albuquerque NM, Bakersfield CA, Des Moines IA, Winston-
Salem NC, Greensboro NC, Lafayette CA, Seattle WA, Oakland CA, Denver CO, Dallas TX, Laredo TX, Salt 
Lake City UT, St, Louis MO, Berkeley CA, Spokane WA, Indianapolis IN, Lexington KY and Louisville KY. 
 
A focused list on comparable cities within Wisconsin and their ordinance attributes:


● Madison, population 231,916
○ up to 4 hens allowed on a lot with up to 4 dwelling units, no roosters, $10 permit required, no 


slaughtering in city, coop/run at least 25' from structures on adjacent lots, hens contained in 
covered or fenced enclosure at all times


 


● New Berlin, population 38,649
○ up to 4 hens or ducks allowed per single-family dwelling, no roosters, no slaughtering, coop/run 


at least 5' within lot line and 25' from structures on adjacent lots, kept within a secure enclosure
 


● Fort Atkinson, population 11,895
○ up to 6 chickens allowed, not to exceed 6 animals total, proper care required


 


● Neenah, population 25,060
○ up to 4 hens per single-family dwelling, no roosters, city registration required, no slaughtering 


in city, coop/run at least 25' from residential structures on adjacent lots, covered enclosure 
required, hens contained in covered enclosure or fenced enclosure at all times, clean and 
sanitary conditions required


 


● Jefferson, population 7,822
○ up to 4 hens per single-family dwelling, no roosters, no slaughtering in the city, coop/run at least 


15' within lot line, covered enclosure required, hens contained in covered enclosure or fenced 
enclosure at all times


 


● Sheboygan, population 47,895
○ no limit on hens, coop/run must be kept at a distance from dwellings so as to not cause a 


nuisance, must be kept in sanitary condition, must not cause a rubbish problem
 







 


The Uniqueness of Hens
A common concern of those not familiar with chickens is that once a community lets chickens in, the (barn) 
door is opened for all other “farm” animals (e.g., sheep, goats, pigs, horses, cows, emus, etc.) to be kept in the 
city as well. This fear is unfounded.
 
It is not by chance that only female chickens (hens) are getting the attention for backyard keeping in residential 
neighborhoods. Hens are ideally suited for small, urban lots due to several unique characteristics not 
possessed by other animals:
 


● They are small and have low space requirements


● They are quiet


● They are easy to contain and manage


● Their solid waste can be used in vegetable gardens


● They provide food (eggs) without being slaughtered


● They are relatively cheap to raise


● They are useful in controlling insects and other pests


● They can't fly well or far, and a painless wing clipping keeps them from flying at all


● They stay close to home if they should happen to get loose


● They go to sleep in the same place every day at sundown


● They don't require specialized or hard-to-learn skills to keep


● They are readily available
 


Other animals fail in one or more of these areas. Even ducks, which would be the closest in characteristics, fail 
due to their relative noisiness and outstanding flight ability.
 
An urban environment would simply not be humane or practical for the keeping of any other “farm” animal.







 


Backyard Coop Examples
Below is an example of a combined coop and run. The footprint is approximately 4’ x 8’. As you can see, these 
are attractive structures that blend in with an urban environment. 
 


 
 
The one below is slightly larger than needed for 4 hens, but demonstrates the general aesthetics of a backyard 
coop and run.
 


 
 







 


Experience of Others Regarding Urban Hens


Enforcement
10/22/2009, Madison Animal Control was asked via phone if chicken calls were frequent:


“...I was told that these calls were “few and far between” and that they have had “very 
few problems” and that most of their calls come in regarding cats and dog: visious dogs, 
noise, stray, cat “pooped” in the neighbor's flowers, etc.”


 
10/28/2009, Matt Tucker, Madison Zoning Administrator wrote in a letter that asked about "chicken" 
enforcement practices:


“...Generally, we receive less than 10 complaints in a typical calendar year. The 
majority...relate to roosters being on site, too many chickens on site, or coops/shelters/
enclosures that are placed too close”
 


“...the enforcement burden of managing this ordinance is fairly minimal”
 


12/10/2009, Police Chief Tony Brus of Fort Atkinson, responded via email when asked about how many animal 
control calls they get on average that are chicken related:


“Rarely, but when they start in a neighborhood there are usually many related that 
follow.”


 


[Has the]...Police Department...been overburdened with the inclusion of chickens?
“Not normally, but as I said above, when one neighbor starts complaining, usually 
several others do too.”


 
6/8/2010, Matt Trebatoski, City Clerk/Treasurer of the City of Fort Atkinson, WI, responded via email when 
asked about any issues they have seen with chickens:


“I talked with the Humane Society and they have not encountered any issues in the City.  
I also spoke with our Police Department and they could only remember one complaint 
about three years ago where the person thought it was illegal for their neighbor to have a 
chicken in the City...”
  
“I would have to say we are indifferent on the keeping of chickens in the City...”
 


2/2010, DePaul University Professor Hugh Bartling’s Green Urban Policy class interviewed staff members from 
over 20 municipalities throughout the country, and published this in their 8 page report:


In response to a questions regarding enforcement, chickens getting loose or being 
abandoned, “Seventeen indicated that...it [at-large chickens] has not been a problem. 
The remaining 3 reported isolated incidences.”
 


“...enforcement has not been a major problem in any of the cities that we surveyed.”
 


In response to a question on whether or not the adoption of a chicken ordinance has been an 
overall positive or negative for their city, “15 [of 21] reported that the ordinance has been 
positive. Six reported that the ordinance has been neutral. No cities reported a negative 
experience.”







 


Disease
5/4/2010, Ron Kean, UW Extension Poultry Specialist, wrote in a letter responding to concerns about the threat 
of human disease transmission from poultry:


“...the risks are really quite minimal. With any animal, there are possible issues, but a 
list of possible threats from a dog or cat would be at least as long, and probably longer.”


 
1/26/2009, James C. Hermes, PhD, Oregon State University Extension Poultry Specialist, wrote in a letter 
when asked about concerns of backyard chickens:


“Chickens are relatively healthy animals...While there are potential disease problems 
with all animals major problems [with chickens] are rare and “bird flu” of the type 
noted in the media has not been diagnosed in the whole of the Western Hemisphere and 
may not ever find its way here.”


  


Property Values


6/2010, Deborah Bicksler and Mary Ellan Silbaugh of The Bicksler Group Realty, wrote in a letter to Chickens 
in Stoughton?!:


“Over the course of selling Madison homes...we have not had a single conversation with 
any client in which the discussion centered around chickens negatively impacting the 
desirability of a neighborhood nor housing values.”


 
2/16/2010, Thomas E. Malone, Management Analyst to the City of Janesville, WI, wrote in a Memo to the 
Janesville City Council:


“...staff has been asked to look into the matter of whether raising chickens within city 
limits would impact property values. There has been no empirical evidence to suggest a 
positive or negative impact on home values and staff is unable to quantify the potential 
effect keeping chickens would have on adjacent properties.”


 
1/7/2009, Professor Joe Bowerson, Willamette University and Director of the Center for Sustainable 
Communities, wrote in a letter to Mayor Taylor, Salem Oregon, regarding backyard chickens:


“With proper regulation prohibiting the presence of roosters and mandating proper 
enclosures, these cities [in Oregon] have demonstrated that chickens can indeed be kept 
in urban and suburban environments and not adversely affect public health, livability 
or property values. In fact...allowing residents to raise chickens can improve the diet, 
pocketbook and sustainability of individual households.”


 
7/23/2009, Dave Cieslewicz, Mayor of Madison, Wisconsin, commented in his blog:


“We allowed chickens about four years ago with very few complaints and lots of happy 
chicken owners. I know not everybody likes the idea. But you can't make an omelet 
without cracking some eggs.”


 








O - - 2010


AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTION 6-2
OF THE STOUGHTON MUNICIPAL CODE


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin, do
ordain as follows:


1. Section 6-2 of the Stoughton Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as
follows:


Sec. 6-2 Keeping of animals, and fowl and , bees prohibited


(a) No person shall keep any hoofed animal, fowl or bees within the city. A maximum of
three rabbits may be kept out of doors as pets, but not bred for meat or sale. Dogs may
be kept out of doors in appropriate enclosures with proper shelter. Small animals,
reptiles, birds and fish that are housed within a residence shall be permitted. Small
animals include, but are not limited to, tropical fish, parrots, parakeets, cockatiels,
canaries, cockatoos, finches, love birds, house cats, guinea pigs, gerbils, hamsters,
fancy mice and rats, reptiles and turtles. In no event shall poisonous snakes or those
having normal adult size that exceed four feet in length or members of the genus Canis
or genus Felis other than common dogs and cats be permitted to be kept as pets in the
city.


(b) A maximum of four domesticated female chickens (hens) may be kept out of
doors in appropriate enclosures with proper shelter. A permit must be applied for
and issued by the City Clerk prior to the keeping of chickens.


2. This ordinance shall take effect upon its passage and publication.


Adopted on roll call at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of
Stoughton held on the day of , 2010.


VOTE: APPROVED:


Ayes: __________________________
Donna L. Olson, Mayor


Noes:


Adopted: __________________________
Luann J. Alme, City Clerk


Published:


s/common/lja/ord&res/chickens/section 6-2





